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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Board of Directors - Regular Session
Tuesday, January 11, 2022 - 6:30 p.m.
Via Zoom https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89356303355
Newport, Oregon
Agenda
1) CALL TO ORDER
2) ROLL CALL- ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM
3) INTRODUCTIONS
4) COMMUNICATIONS

(During this time the audience will have the opportunity to speak to the Board. Anyone wishing to address the
Board on a specific item on the Board’s agenda, please email the following information to
Eddie.symington@lincoln.k12.or.us by 3:00 pm on Monday January 10, 2022: Name, address and phone number
(optional), and comment regarding specific item on the Board’s agenda. Once your request is received, you will be
contacted with details regarding making the comment during the meeting.)

a) Written
b) From the Audience
c) Recognition
1. School Board Appreciation Proclamation- Dr. Karen Gray
(1) Appreciation Gift
d) LCEA Report
e) North Area Reports
5) CONSULTANT REPORTS/STAFF REPORTS
a) Annual Audit Report
b) Financial Report
c) First Student Written Report
6) BOARD REPORTS
a) General Area Reports
7) SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT
a) School Update
1. Omicron Variant Update
b) 2023 Centennial Birthday of LCSD Planning Begins
c) Policy Update- First Readings of Policy IFA, KGBB

1

8) ADOPTION OF THE CONSENT CALENDAR

(Consent Calendar agenda items are designated by the Board to be adopted in a single motion unless
an individual Board member or the Superintendent requests an item be removed for consideration.
Action on matters of a routine matter is addressed in one motion to conserve time for other deliberation
by the Board.)

a) MINUTES OF THE BOARD
1. November & December Minutes
b) TEACHING & LEARNING
c) HUMAN RESOURCES
1. Regular Items
d) BUSINESS SERVICES
e) SPECIAL PROGRAMS
f) FACILITIES/MAINTENANCE/TRANSPORTATION/ FOOD SERVICE
g) BOARD
1. Policy Final Reading
2. Final Reading of ACB, ACB-AR(1), ACB-AR(2), JFCF, JFCF-AR(1), JFCF-AR(2), IB,
IGBHA, IGBHA-AR(1), IGBI, IGDJ, IIA, JB, JBB, JFC, JFCJ, JHFE/GBNAB,
JHFE/GBNAB-AR(1), JHFE/GBNAB-AR(2), JHFF/GBNAA, GBNAA/JHFF-AR, DJA,
IKF
9) ACTION ITEMS

(Decision Items are those that have been presented to the Board for discussion and questions at a prior
meeting. Some circumstances may dictate a Decision Item without prior discussion.)

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)

TEACHING & LEARNING
HUMAN RESOURCES
BUSINESS SERVICES
SPECIAL PROGRAMS
FACILITIES/MAINTENANCE/TRANSPORTATION/FOOD SERVICES
BOARD
OTHER

10) ITEMS OF DISCUSSION AND INFORMATION

(Discussion Items are presented for the Board’s consideration, discussion and questions. Discussion
Items will be considered for Decision at a subsequent meeting. Information items are for information
only.)

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

TEACHING & LEARNING
HUMAN RESOURCES
BUSINESS SERVICES
SPECIAL PROGRAMS
FACILITIES/MAINTENANCE/TRANSPORTATION/FOOD SERVICES
BOARD
1. Instrument for Superintendent Evaluation & Timeline
g) OTHER
1. January 25, 2022 Work Session via Zoom
2. The Board will receive a Google Form collecting more specific information on NSBA
3. February 8, 2022 Regular Business Meeting at Toledo Jr/Sr at this time
11) ADJOURNMENT
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Board Strategic Goals 2020-2025
GOAL ONE: Enhanced Communications and Community Engagement.
LCSD will enhance the ways in which it communicates with community stakeholders and increase the engagement of
various community groups by connecting schools, families, and partners county wide.
GOAL TWO: LCSD is a Convener and Influencer of City, County and State Education and Economic Policies.
LCSD will convene at least one county wide partnership gathering per year in order to connect Lincoln County elected
people, organizations, and agencies in order to create partnerships that benefit our students and families throughout the
community.
GOAL THREE: LCSD will provide for the Health and Welfare of our Facilities.
LCSD will continue to assess, monitor, and enhance all of its facilities and grounds such that every school is warm, safe
and welcoming to all students, families and communities and learning experiences are supported in the healthiest
environments possible.
GOAL FOUR: LCSD will Identify the Need and Development of a LCSD Foundation (501 c 3).
LCSD will investigate the development of a LCSD Foundation for the purposes of creating a funding source for valued
activities we currently cannot pay for through the general fund such as art, music, theater, middle school athletics, some
field trips, and other items desired by our teachers and staff. Feasibility, costs and sustainability will be investigated.
GOAL FIVE: Demonstrate High Expectations For Student Achievement By Supporting an Equitable Education
Framework.
ALL LCSD students will demonstrate continuous academic and behavioral growth and achievement as demonstrated by
the indicators. LCSD will strive to create equitable classrooms across the district within a framework of excellence in
education.
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA
January 11, 2022
ITEM: Information
TOPIC:

Communications

PREPARED BY:

Eddie Symington

WILL BE PRESENTED BY:
TYPE OF ITEM:

Superintendent Gray

Consent

Information

Discussion

Decision

DESCRIPTION OF AGENDA ITEM:

a) Written
b) From the Audience
c) Recognition
1. School Board Appreciation Proclamation- Dr. Karen Gray
(1) Appreciation Gift
d) LCEA Report
e) North Area Reports

RECOMMENDATION:

None; for information only.

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS:

Attached: Yes
4

No

Available: Yes

No

Proclamation of School Board Recognition Month
WHEREAS, school boards create a vision for what students should know and be able to do;
WHEREAS, school boards establish clear standards for student performance;
WHEREAS, school boards ensure that student assessments are tied to established standards;
WHEREAS, school boards are accountable to the community for operating schools that support
student achievement;
WHEREAS, school boards align school district resources to ensure that students meet
standards;
WHEREAS, school boards create a climate that supports the philosophy that all children can
learn at high levels;
WHEREAS, school boards build collaborative relationships based on trust, teamwork and shared
accountability; and
WHEREAS, school boards are committed to continuous education and training on issues related
to student achievement;
NOW, THEREFORE, We, hereby declare our appreciation to the members of the Lincoln County
School District School Board and proclaim the month of January to be School Board
Recognition Month.
We urge all citizens to join us in recognizing the dedication and hard work of local school board
members in preparing today's students for tomorrow's world.
Signed:
Dated:
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA
January 11, 2022
ITEM: Information
TOPIC:

Annual Audit Report

PREPARED BY:

Kim Cusick

WILL BE PRESENTED BY:
TYPE OF ITEM:

Kim Cusick

Consent

Information

Discussion

Decision

DESCRIPTION OF AGENDA ITEM:

Director Cusick and Auditor Kenny Allen will give the results from the recent Annual
Financial Audit.

RECOMMENDATION:

None; for information only.

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS:

Attached: Yes
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No

Available: Yes

No

LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

12700 SW 72nd Ave.
Tigard, OR 97223
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
1212 NE FOGARTY STREET
NEWPORT, OREGON 97365
FINANCIAL REPORT
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Prepared by:
The Business Services Department
Kim Cusick, Business Services Director

8

LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
TABLE OF CONTENTS
******
PAGE
NUMBER
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

1

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

I-VI

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES:
Basic Financial Statements:
Government - Wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet- Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances - Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
To the Statement of Net Position
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities
Proprietary Funds:
Statement of Proprietary Net Position – Internal Service Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Proprietary Net Position –
Internal Service Fund
Statement of Cash Flows – Internal Service Fund

11
12

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

13

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Contributions
Schedule of Change in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances – Actual and Budget:
Major Funds:
General Fund
Special Funds

9

4
5
6
7
8
9
10

41
42

43
44

LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
T A B L E O F C O N T E N T S (CONTINUED)
******

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances – Actual and Budget:
Self Insurance Fund
Debt Service Fund
Capital Construction Fund
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS

PAGE
NUMBER

45
46
47
48

GRANT COMPLIANCE REVIEW:
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (supplementary information)
Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each
Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by
the Uniform Guidance
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

10

50
51
53
55

LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS

ZONE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

TERM EXPIRES

1

Megan Cawley – Chair

June 30, 2023

2

Liz Martin - Vice Chair

June 30, 2023

3

Ron Beck

June 30, 2021

4

Jenny Demaris

June 30, 2021

5

Amanda Remund

June 30, 2021

All board members will receive mail at the following address:
1212 NE Fogarty Street
Newport, Oregon 97365

ADMINISTRATION
Dr. Karen Gray, Superintendent
Kim Cusick, Business Services Director

11

PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C.
12700 SW 72nd Ave. ♦ Tigard, OR 97223
(503) 620-2632 ♦ (503) 684-7523 FAX
www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com

To the Board of Directors
Lincoln County School District
Lincoln County, Oregon

November 3, 2021

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the basic financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Lincoln County School District (the District), as of and for the year ended June 30,
2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these basic financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of basic financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these basic financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic
financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the basic
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the basic financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the basic financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion the basic financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Lincoln County School District, at June 30, 2021 and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.
-112

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion
and Analysis and the required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, as listed in the table of contents, in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, as listed in the table of contents, because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.
The Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Contributions, Schedule of Change in Net OPEB
Liability and Related Ratios, and budgetary comparison schedules presented as Required Supplementary Information,
as listed in the table of contents, have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
and in our opinion are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements that collectively comprise
the Lincoln County School District’s basic financial statements. The supplementary and other information, as listed in
the table of contents, and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information, as listed
in the table of contents, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
The listing of board members containing their term expiration dates, located before the table of contents, has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.
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Reports on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our reports dated November 3, 2021, on our
consideration of Lincoln County School District’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. The purpose of the reports is to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
do not provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. Those reports are an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.
In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued our report dated
November 3, 2021, on our consideration of compliance with certain provisions of laws and regulations, including the
provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on
compliance.

Kenneth Allen, CPA
Municipal Auditor
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C.
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2021

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Prepaids
OPEB Asset Oregon RHIA
Capital assets, net of depreciation

$

Total Assets

33,903,288
9,685,038
555,952
869,703
102,388,458
147,402,439

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Pension related deferrals - Oregon RHIA
Pension related deferrals - Implicit
Pension related deferrals - Oregon PERS

96,718
271,763
13,834,541

Total Deferred Outflows

14,203,022

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Payroll liabilities
Unearned revenue
Noncurrent liabilities:
OPEB Liability Implicit Subsidy
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability - Oregon PERS
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

3,635,125
1,907,220
699,682
3,056,944
15,785,496
6,855,000
54,689,935

Total Liabilities

86,629,402

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Pension related deferrals - Oregon RHIA
Pension related deferrals - Implicit
Pension related deferrals - Oregon PERS

324,512
1,659,247
5,078,093

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

7,061,852

NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted For:
Capital Projects
Grant Programs
Food Service
Student Body
Debt Service
Unrestricted

71,713,458
982,243
1,639,959
1,138,448
1,039,316
10,694,421
(19,293,638)

Total Net Position

$

67,914,207

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
PROGRAM REVENUES

FUNCTIONS

Instruction

CHARGES FOR
SERVICES

EXPENSES

$

Support Services

42,489,303

$

OPERATING GRANTS
AND CONTRIBUTIONS

44,072

$

6,571,946

NET (EXPENSE)
REVENUE AND
CHANGES IN NET
POSITION

$

(35,873,285)

30,072,699

-

5,434,398

(24,638,301)

Community Services

3,477,987

226,255

4,849,883

1,598,151

Interest on Long-Term Debt

3,886,110

-

-

(3,886,110)

16,856,227

(62,799,545)

Total Primary Government

$

79,926,099

$

270,327

$

General Revenues
Property Taxes
State Revenue Sharing
Grants/Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs
State, Intermediate and Local Sources
Federal Sources
Interest and Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous

46,183,761
22,698,137
3,361,616
255,238
320,161
2,383,970

Total General Revenues

75,202,883

Changes in Net Position

12,403,338

Net Position - Beginning

55,510,869

Net Position - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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$

67,914,207

LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2021

GENERAL
FUND
ASSETS:
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Taxes
Accounts
Grants
Miscellaneous
Due from other funds
Prepaid Expense

$

SPECIAL
FUNDS

12,039,586

$

2,217,283
824,353
4,757,036
218,023

Total Assets

$

20,056,281

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Due to Other Funds
$
Accounts Payable
840,706
Payroll Liabilities
1,729,539
Unearned Revenue
DOE - SSFG Payable
1,420,503
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows:
Unavailable revenue:
Property Taxes
Total Deferred Inflows
Fund Balances:
Non-Spendable
Restricted For:
Capital Projects
Grant Programs
Food Service
Student Body
Debt Service
Committed For:
Building Maintenance
Curriculum
Technology Services
Vehicle Replacement
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows,
and Fund Balances

$

DEBT SERVICE
FUND

8,265,034

$

1,790
6,163,218
5,661
-

10,617,580
316,061
76,841
337,929

$

14,435,703

$

11,348,411

$

4,757,036
1,315,883
699,682
-

$

-

3,990,748

6,772,601

-

2,217,283

-

316,061

2,217,283

-

316,061

218,023

-

337,929

-

1,639,959
1,138,448
1,039,316
-

10,694,421

13,630,227

1,868,723
900,000
964,836
111,820
-

-

13,848,250

7,663,102

11,032,350

20,056,281

$

14,435,703

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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$

11,348,411

CAPITAL
CONSTRUCTION
FUND
$

915,296

TOTALS
$

79,831
-

31,837,496
2,533,344
982,815
6,163,218
5,661
4,757,036
555,952

$

995,127

$

46,835,522

$

12,884
-

$

4,757,036
2,169,473
1,729,539
699,682
1,420,503

12,884

10,776,233

-

2,533,344

-

2,533,344

-

555,952

982,243
-

982,243
1,639,959
1,138,448
1,039,316
10,694,421

-

1,868,723
900,000
964,836
111,820
13,630,227

982,243
$

995,127

33,525,945
$

46,835,522
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

GENERAL
FUND

REVENUES:
Taxes
Federal grants
State and local sources
Intermediate Sources
Charges for services
Earnings from investments
Miscellaneous

$

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Instruction
Support Services
Community Services
Facilities Acquisition and Construction
Other Uses
Capital Outlay
Operating Contingency
Debt Service:
Other General Professional Services
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
Other Financing Sources, (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfer out
Sale of Capital Assets
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund balance, beginning
Fund balance, Ending

$

39,440,376
255,238
24,100,856
541,606
213,990
204,343
354,209

SPECIAL
FUNDS
$

DEBT SERVICE
FUND

10,413
10,728,735
7,576,162
23,803
11,480
2,349,440

$

6,421,072
5,578,890
87,242
-

65,110,618

20,700,033

12,087,204

35,127,349
24,689,717
142,949
-

6,571,946
5,434,398
3,418,848
3,905,953
-

-

3,000
-

-

5,621,541
4,085,521

59,963,015

19,331,145

9,707,062

5,147,603

1,368,888

2,380,142

(2,100,000)
11,756

2,100,000
421,006

-

(2,088,244)

2,521,006

-

3,059,359

3,889,894

2,380,142

10,788,891

3,773,208

8,652,208

13,848,250

$

7,663,102

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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$

11,032,350

CAPITAL
CONSTRUCTION
FUND
$

715,747
4,501
-

TOTALS
$

720,248

98,618,103

480,172
-

41,699,295
30,124,115
3,418,848
4,529,074
-

-

3,000
5,621,541
4,085,521

480,172

89,481,394

240,076

9,136,709

-

$

46,587,608
10,983,973
31,677,018
541,606
5,816,683
307,566
2,703,649

2,100,000
(2,100,000)
432,762

-

432,762

240,076

9,569,471

742,167

23,956,474

982,243

$

33,525,945

-7A20

LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2021

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

$

33,525,945

The cost of capital assets (land, buildings, furniture and equipment) purchased or constructed
is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds. The statement of Net Position includes those
capital assets among the assets of the District as a whole.
Net Capital Assets

102,388,458

Long-term liabilities applicable to the District's governmental activities are not due and payable in
the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. All liabilities, both current
and long term, are reported in the Statement of Net Position.
Long term Liabilities
Accrued Compensated Absences
OPEB Liability
General obligation bonds payable (Net of unamortized premium and discount)

$

(177,681)
(4,444,428)
(61,544,935)

(66,167,044)

The Net Pension Asset (Liability), and deferred inflows and outflows related to the Net Pension Asset is
the difference between the total pension liability and assets set aside to pay benefits earned to past and
current employees and beneficiaries

(6,387,139)

The Net Position of the Internal Service Fund is included in the Government-Wide balance sheet

2,020,643

Unavailable revenue related to property taxes and other assets

2,533,344

Net Position

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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67,914,207

LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Total Net Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

$

Repayment of bond principal, premium/discount, compensated absences, and post retirement obligations is
an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of
Net Position. Additions to these items are expensed in the Statement of Activities, but not in the governmental
funds.

9,569,471

$5,815,762

Capital asset additions are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the Statement
of Activities, the cost of those assets is capitalized and allocated over their estimated useful lives
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital asset additions exceeds depreciation.
Capital Asset Additions
Depreciation Expense

$4,280,655
($2,622,638)

Internal Service Fund Net Income flows to the Statement of Activities

460,895

The OPEB (implicit) and the changes in deferred inflows and outflows related to the Liability
Asset represents the changes in the OPEB Liability from year to year

$76,649

The Pension Expense and the changes in deferred inflows and outlfows related to the Net Pension
Asset represents the changes in Net Pension Asset (Liability) from year to year due to changes in total
pension liability and the fair value of pension plan net position available to pay pension benefits.

(5,199,804)

Property tax revenue in the Statement of Activities differs from the amount reported in the
governmental funds. In the governmental funds, which are on the modified accrual basis,
the District recognizes a deferred revenue for all property taxes levied but not received, however
in the Statement of Activities, there is no deferred revenue and the full property tax receivable
is accrued.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

$22,348

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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12,403,338

LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
STATEMENT OF PROPRIETARY NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
June 30, 2021

SELF INSURANCE
FUND
ASSETS:
Current assets
Cash and Investments

$

Total current assets

2,065,792
2,065,792

Total assets

$

2,065,792

$

45,149

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION:
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Total Current Liabilities

45,149

Total Liabilities

45,149

NET POSITION
Unrestricted

2,020,643

Total Net Position

2,020,643
$

Total Liabilities and Net Position

2,065,792

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN PROPRIETARY NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

SELF INSURANCE
FUND
OPERATING REVENUES:
$

Services Provided to Other Funds
Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues

1,575,346
35,628
1,610,974

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Purchased Services

1,162,674

Total Operating Expenses

1,162,674

Income From Operations

448,300

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, (USES)
Earnings from Investments

12,595

Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses)

12,595

Change in Net Position

460,895

Net Position, Beginning

1,559,748
$

Net Position, Ending

2,020,643

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

SELF INSURANCE
FUND
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Paid to Vendors
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

$

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest Received

1,610,974
(1,162,674)
448,300

12,595

Net increase (decrease) in cash and investments

460,895

Cash and investments, beginning of year

1,604,897

Cash and investments, end of year

$

2,065,792

$

448,300

Reconciliation of Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Change in Net Position
Adjustments for:
(Increase) Decrease in Receivables
Increase (Decrease) in Payables
Increase (Decrease) in Estimated Claims

-

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

$

448,300

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
-1225

LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The basic financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The more significant of the District's accounting policies are described below.
REPORTING ENTITY
Lincoln County School district is a municipal corporation governed by an elected board. The accompanying financial
statements present the government and any component units, entities for which the government is considered to be
financially accountable. Blended component units are, in substance, part of the primary government’s operations, even
though they are legally separate entities. Thus, blended component units are appropriately presented as funds of the
primary government. Each discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the governmentwide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the government. The District does not have any
component units.
BASIS OF PRESENTATION
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GWFS)
The Statement of Net Position and Statements of Activities display information about the reporting government as
a whole. Fiduciary funds are not included in the GWFS. Fiduciary funds are reported only in the Statement of
Fiduciary Net Position at the fund statement level.
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities were prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities
resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Revenues,
expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from nonexchange transactions are recognized in accordance
with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 33 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange
Transactions”.
Program Revenues included in the Statement of Activities derive directly from the program itself or from parties
outside the District’s taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole; program revenues reduce the cost of the function to be
financed from the District’s general revenues.
The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those that
are clearly identifiable with a function. Interest of general long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is
reported separately on the Statement of Activities. In the process of aggregating data for the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the funds were
eliminated or reclassified. Interfund receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize the “grossing up” effect
on assets and liabilities.
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The accounts of the District are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an independent fiscal and
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their
intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and
contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and managerial
requirements.
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
Governmental funds are used to account for the District’s general government activities. Governmental fund types
use the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they are
“measurable and available”). “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available”
means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
Property tax revenue and proceeds from sale of property are not considered available and, therefore, are not
recognized until received. Expenditures are recorded when the liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest
on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, interfund transactions, and certain compensated absences
and claims and judgments which are recognized as expenditures because they will be liquidated with expendable
financial resources.
Revenues susceptible to accrual are interest, state, county and local shared revenue and federal and state grants.
Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all
other grant requirements have been met.
The District reports the following major governmental funds:
GENERAL FUND
The General Fund accounts for all financial resources and expenditures of the District, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund. The principal revenue sources are property taxes and an apportionment from the
State of Oregon School Support Fund.
SPECIAL FUNDS
The Special Funds account for revenues and expenditures related to specific educational and other projects.
Principal revenue sources are federal and state grant awards, fundraising, donations, proceeds from the sale of land
and/or buildings and earnings from temporary investments.
DEBT SERVICE FUND
The Debt Service Fund accounts for the payment of principal and interest of the District's general obligation bonds
and PERS Bonds. The principal resources are property taxes for general obligation bonds and internal charges for
PERS Bonds.
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION FUND
The Capital Construction Fund accounts for expenditures related to capital projects. Principal resources are bond
proceeds and construction excise taxes.
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
Proprietary funds are used to account for a government’s business-type activities. There are two types of proprietary
funds – enterprise funds and internal service funds. Both fund types use the same generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as similar to businesses in the private sector. Both enterprise and internal service funds recover
the full cost of providing services (including capital costs) through fees and charges on those who use their services.
The adopted budget is based on the modified accrual basis. The management of these funds, however, is based on
the “bottom line” and whether the expenses are supported by revenue. The District uses “net unrestricted position”
to evaluate these funds. This method is similar to working capital and is the result of all transactions that affect
unrestricted assets and liabilities. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering
goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
District’s internal service fund are internal health insurance charges. Operating expenses for internal service funds
include the cost of sales and services, and administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
The District reports the following proprietary fund:
SELF INSURANCE FUND
The Self Insurance Fund is an internal service fund that accounts for insurance claims made by employees for
various medical costs. The principal resources are internal charges.
MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
The governmental fund financial statements are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus.
With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the combined balance
sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases
(expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
The governmental are maintained using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded in the
accounting period in which they become susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available) and expenditures are
recorded at the time the related fund liabilities are incurred, except for:
1) Vested compensated absences which are recorded as expenditures to the extent they are expected to be
liquidated with expendable available financial resources.
2) Post retirement benefits which are recorded when paid.
3) Accrued interest and principal on long-term debt which is recorded on its due date.
Significant revenues susceptible to accrual under the modified accrual basis of accounting are as follows:
1) Federal and state grants.
2) Property taxes received within approximately sixty days of the end of a fiscal year.
3) Any local or county shared revenues.
The basis of accounting described above is in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.
BUDGETS
A budget is prepared and legally adopted for each governmental fund type on the modified accrual basis of accounting
in the main program categories required by Oregon Local Budget Law. The budgets for all budgeted funds are adopted
on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles except the property taxes received after year-end
not considered budgetary resources in the funds. A budget is not prepared for the agency funds as allowed by Oregon
law.
The District begins its budget process early in each fiscal year with the establishment of the budget committee.
Recommendations are developed through late winter with the budget committee approving the budget in early spring.
Public notices of the budget hearing are generally published in spring with a public hearing being held approximately
three weeks later. The Board may amend the budget prior to adoption. However, budgeted expenditures for each fund
may not be increased by more than ten percent without re-publication. The budget is then adopted, appropriations are
made, and the tax levy declared no later than June 30th.
Expenditure budgets are appropriated at the following levels for each fund:
LEVEL OF CONTROL
Instruction
Supporting Services
Enterprise & Community Services
Facilities Acquisition and Construction
Other Uses - Debt Service and Interfund Transfers
Operating Contingency

29
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Expenditures cannot legally exceed the above appropriation levels except in the case of grants which could not be
estimated at the time of budget adoption. Appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-end. Management may amend line
items in the budget without Board approval as long as appropriation levels (the legal level of control) are not changed.
Supplemental appropriations may occur if the Board approves them due to a need which exists which was not
determined at the time the budget was adopted.
Budget amounts shown in the basic financial statements reflect the original budgeted appropriation amounts and a
supplemental budget and appropriation transfers. Expenditures of the various funds were within authorized
appropriation levels for the year ended June 30, 2021.
PROPERTY TAXES RECEIVABLE
Uncollected real and personal property taxes are reflected on the statement of net position and the balance sheet as
receivables. Uncollected taxes are deemed to be substantially collectible or recoverable through liens. All property
taxes receivable are due from property owners within the District.
Under state law, county governments are responsible for extending authorized property tax levies, computing tax rates,
billing and collecting all property taxes, and making periodic distributions of collections to entities levying taxes.
Property taxes become a lien against the property when levied on July 1 of each year and are payable in three
installments due on November 15, February 15 and May 15. Property tax collections are distributed monthly except
for November, when such distributions are made weekly.
GRANTS
Unreimbursed expenditures due from grantor agencies are reflected in the basic financial statements as receivables and
revenues. Grant revenues are recorded at the time eligible expenditures are incurred. Cash received from grantor
agencies in excess of related grant expenditures are recorded as unearned revenue on the statement of net position and
the balance sheet.
CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets are recorded at original cost or estimated original cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their
estimated fair market value on the date donated. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Interest incurred during
construction is not capitalized. The cost of routine maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or
materially extend asset lives are charged to expenditures as incurred and not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated
using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:
Buildings and improvements

10 to 50 years

Vehicles and Equipment

5 to 30 years
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
RETIREMENT PLANS
Substantially all of the District's employees are participants in the State of Oregon Public Employees Retirement System
(PERS). For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about fiduciary net position of PERS and additions
to/deductions from PERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS.
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable
in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. GASB Statements 68 and 71 have been
implemented as of July 1, 2014.
COMPENSATED ABSENCES
It is the District’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits. There
is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the government does not have a policy to pay any amounts when
employees separate from service with the government. All vacation pay is accrued in the government-wide statements.
A liability is accrued in the governmental funds because the District expects that vacation pay will be liquidated with
expendable available resources.
USE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts
of revenues, expenditures and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
In the government-wide financial statements long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities
in the governmental activities. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expenditures.
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
FUND BALANCE
GASB issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund-type Definitions, is followed. The
objective of this statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance
classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the existing governmental fund-type definitions.
This statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which
a government is bound to observe constraints imposed on the use of the resources reported in governmental funds.
Under this standard, the fund balance classifications of reserved, designated, and unreserved/undesignated were
replaced with five new classifications – nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.
• Nonspendable fund balance represents amounts that are not in a spendable form.
• Restricted fund balance represents amounts that are legally restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose
(such as debt covenants, grant requirements, donor requirements, or other governments) or are restricted by law
(constitutionally or by enabling legislation).
• Committed fund balance represents funds formally set aside by the governing body for a particular purpose.
The use of committed funds would be approved by resolution.
• Assigned fund balance represents amounts that are constrained by the expressed intent to use resources for
specific purposes that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent can be stipulated
by the governing body or by an official to whom that authority has been given by the governing body. The
District has not assigned fund balances.
• Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification of the General Fund. Only the General Fund may report
a positive unassigned fund balance. Other governmental funds would report any negative residual fund balance
as unassigned.
The governing body has approved the following order of spending regarding fund balance categories: Restricted
resources are spent first when both restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned or unassigned) resources are
available for expenditures. When unrestricted resources are spent, the order of spending is committed (if applicable),
assigned (if applicable) and unassigned.
NET POSITION
Net position comprises of the various net earnings from operations, non-operating revenues, expenses and contributions
of capital. Components of net position are classified in the following three categories:
Net Investment in Capital Assets – consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced
by the outstanding balances of any bonds or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets.
Restricted – consists of external constraints placed on asset use by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.
Unrestricted – consists of all other assets that are not included in the other categories previously mentioned.
When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available for use, restricted net position is utilized first.
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOW OF RESOURCES
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflow of
resources. This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. In addition to
liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.
This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and
so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District reports revenue in the
governmental funds that is not available to pay for current obligations as Deferred Inflows.
FAIR VALUE, INPUTS, METHODOLOGIES AND HIERARCHY
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Observable inputs are developed based on market
data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best
information available about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset. The classification of
securities within the fair value hierarchy is based up on the activity level in the market for the security type and the
inputs used to determine their fair value, as follows:
Level 1 – unadjusted price quotations in active markets/exchanges for identical assets or liabilities that each Fund has
the ability to access
Level 2 – other observable inputs (including, but not limited to, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in markets
that are active, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than
quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities (such as interest rates, yield curves, volatilities, loss
severities, credit risks and default rates) or other market–corroborated inputs)
Level 3 – unobservable inputs based on the best information available in the circumstances, to the extent observable
inputs are not available (including each Fund’s own assumptions used in determining the fair value of investments)
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Accordingly, the degree
of judgment exercised in determining fair value is greatest for instruments categorized in Level 3. The inputs used to
measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure purposes, the
fair value hierarchy classification is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety.
2. BUDGET/GAAP REPORTING DIFFERENCES
While the District reports financial position, results of operations, and changes in fund balance/net position on the basis
of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), the District’s budgetary basis of
accounting differs from generally accepted accounting principles, as required by ORS. The budgetary statements
provided as part of supplementary information elsewhere in this report are presented on the budgetary basis to provide
a meaningful comparison of actual results with the budget. The primary differences between the District’s budgetary
basis and GAAP basis is the classification of capital outlay and debt service, which for budgetary purposes is reported
within the functional categories at the level of appropriation control. In the budgetary statements capital purchases and
debt service payments are recognized as expenses whereas in the GAAP statements they are recorded as increases in
capital assets and reductions in long term debt.
-20-
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS
State statutes govern the District’s cash management policies, because the District does not have an official investment
policy. Statutes authorize the District to invest in banker’s acceptances, time certificates of deposit, repurchase
agreements, obligations of the United States and its agencies and instrumentalities, and the Oregon State Treasurer's
Local Government Investment Pool. Deposits with financial institutions include bank demand deposits. Oregon Revised
Statutes require deposits to be adequately covered by federal depository insurance or deposited at an approved
depository as identified by the Treasury.
Cash and cash equivalents
The cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
Investments
Investments in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) are included in the Oregon Short-Term Fund, which is
an external investment pool that is not a 2a-7-like external investment pool, and is not registered with the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission as an investment company. Fair value of the LGIP is calculated at the same value as the
number of pool shares owned. The unit of account is each share held, and the value of the position would be the fair
value of the pool’s share price multiplied by the number of shares held. Investments in the Short-Term Fund are
governed by ORS 294.135, Oregon Investment Council, and portfolio guidelines issued by the Oregon Short-Term
Fund Board, which establish diversification percentages and specify the types and maturities of investments. The
portfolio guidelines permit securities lending transactions as well as investments in repurchase agreements and reverse
repurchase agreements. The fund appears to be in compliance with all portfolio guidelines at June 30, 2021. The LGIP
seeks to exchange shares at $1.00 per share; an investment in the LGIP is neither insured nor guaranteed by the FDIC
or any other government agency. Although the LGIP seeks to maintain the value of share investments at $1.00 per share,
it is possible to lose money by investing in the pool. We intend to measure these investments at book value since it
approximates fair value. The pool is comprised of a variety of investments. These investments are characterized as a
level 2 fair value measurement in the Oregon Short Term Fund’s audited financial report. As of June 30, 2021, the fair
value of the position in the LGIP is 100.4% of the value of the pool shares as reported in the Oregon Short Term Fund
audited financial statements. Amounts in the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool are not required to
be collateralized.
Cash and Investments at June 30, 2021, (recorded at fair value) consisted of:
Deposits With Financial Institutions:
Petty Cash
Demand Deposits:
Checking
CD's
Investments

2021

$

550
5,576,213
421,745
27,904,780

$

33,903,288
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Investment Type
Wells Fargo Bonds and Notes
Oregon Coast Investments
State Treasurer's Investment Pool
Total

Fair Value
$
367
3,647,691
24,256,722
$
27,904,780

Investment Maturities (in months)
Less than 3
3-18
More than 18
$
367 $
- $
3,647,691
24,256,722
$
27,904,780 $
$
-

Interest Rate Risk
Oregon Revised Statutes require investments to not exceed a maturity of 18 months, except when the local government
has adopted a written investment policy that was submitted to and reviewed by the OSTFB.
Credit Risk-Investment
Oregon Revised Statutes does not limit investments as to credit rating for securities purchased from US Government
Agencies or USGSE. The State Investment Pool is not rated.
Custodial Credit Risk
At year-end, the District’s net carrying amount of deposits was $5,576,144 and the bank balance was $6,916,372. Of
these deposits, $500,000 was covered by federal depository insurance. The remainder is collateralized by the Oregon
Public Funds Collateralization Program (PFCP).
4. ACCOUNTS/GRANTS RECEIVABLE
Special revenue fund grants receivable are comprised of claims for reimbursement of costs under various federal and
state grant programs. No allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded because all receivables are deemed to be
collectable.
5. CAPITAL ASSETS
The changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2021 are as follows:
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress

June 30, 2020

$

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Land Improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Total Capital Assets
Accumulated Depreciation:
Land Improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Net Capital Assets

$

7,298,820
1,533,737

Additions

$

259,417

Deletions
$

June 30, 2021
-

$

8,832,557

259,417

9,202,832
123,398,105
5,703,624
147,137,118

72,160
3,452,996
496,082
4,280,655

(71,382)
(71,382)

9,274,992
126,851,101
6,128,324
151,346,391

709,860
41,608,115
4,040,988
46,358,963

96,293
2,271,447
254,898
2,622,638

(23,668)
(23,668)

806,153
43,879,562
4,272,218
48,957,933

100,778,155
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$
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Depreciation was allocated to the functions as follows:
Instruction
Support Services
Community Services

$

1,966,978
524,528
131,132

Total

$

2,622,638

6. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
Plan Description – The Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) consists of a single cost-sharing multipleemployer defined benefit plan. All benefits of the system are established by the legislature pursuant to Oregon Revised
Statute (ORS) Chapters 238 and 238A. Oregon PERS produces an independently audited Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report which can be found at:
https://www.oregon.gov/pers/Documents/Financials/ACFR/2020-ACFR.pdf
If the link is expired please contact Oregon PERS for this information.
a. PERS Pension (Chapter 238). The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Plan is closed to new members hired
on or after August 29, 2003.
i. Pension Benefits. The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life. It may be selected
from 13 retirement benefit options. These options include survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds.
The basic benefit is based on years of service and final average salary. A percentage (2.0 percent for
police and fire employees, and 1.67 percent for general service employees) is multiplied by the number
of years of service and the final average salary. Benefits may also be calculated under either a formula
plus annuity (for members who were contributing before August 21, 1981) or a money match
computation if a greater benefits results.
A member is considered vested and will be eligible at minimum retirement age for a service retirement
allowance if he or she has had a contribution in each of five calendar years or has reached at least 50
years of age before ceasing employment with a participating employer (age 45 for police and fire
members). General service employees may retire after reaching age 55. Police and fire members are
eligible after reaching age 50. Tier 1 general service employee benefits are reduced if retirement occurs
prior to age 58 with fewer than 30 years of service. Police and fire member benefits are reduced if
retirement occurs prior to age 55 with fewer than 25 years of service. Tier 2 members are eligible for
full benefits at age 60. The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is closed to new members
hired on or after August 29, 2003.
ii. Death Benefits. Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum refund
of the member’s account balance (accumulated contributions and interest). In addition, the beneficiary
will receive a lump-sum payment from employer funds equal to the account balance, provided one or
more of the following contributions are met:
 member was employed by PERS employer at the time of death,
 member died within 120 days after termination of PERS covered employment,
 member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a PERS-covered job, or
 member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at the time of death.
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Disability Benefits. A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes disabled
from other than duty-connected causes may receive a non-duty disability benefit. A disability
resulting from a job-incurred injury or illness qualifies a member (including PERS judge members)
for disability benefits regardless of the length of PERS-covered service. Upon qualifying for either
a non-duty or duty disability, service time is computed to age 58 (55 for police and fire members)
when determining the monthly benefit.
ii. Benefit Changes After Retirement. Members may choose to continue participation in their variable
account after retiring and may experience annual benefit fluctuations due to changes in the fair value
of the underlying global equity investments of that account. Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefits are
adjusted annually through cost-of-living changes (COLA). The COLA is capped at 2.0 percent.

i.

b. OPSRP Pension Program (OPSRP DB). The ORS Chapter 238A Defined Benefit Pension Program provides
benefits to members hired on or after August 29, 2003.
i. Pension Benefits. This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer contributions.
Benefits are calculated with the following formula for members who attain normal retirement age:
Police and fire: 1.8 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary.
Normal retirement age for police and fire members is age 60 or age 53 with 25 years of retirement
credit. To be classified as a police and fire member, the individual must have been employed
continuously as a police and fire member for at least five years immediately preceding retirement.
General service: 1.5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary.
Normal retirement age for general service members is age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of retirement
credit.
A member of the pension program becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date the
member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches
normal retirement age, and, if the pension program is terminated, the date on which termination
becomes effective.
ii. Death Benefits. Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person who is
constitutionally required to be treated in the same manner as the spouse, receives for life 50 percent of
the pension that would otherwise have been paid to the deceased member. The surviving spouse may
elect to delay payment of the death benefit, but payment must commence no later than December 31 of
the calendar year in which the member would have reached 70½ years.
iii. Disability Benefits. A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits before the
member becomes disabled or a member who becomes disabled due to job-related injury shall receive a
disability benefit of 45 percent of the member’s salary determined as of the last full month of
employment before the disability occurred.
Contributions – PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined rates.
These contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are intended to accumulate sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due. The funding policy applies to the PERS Defined Benefit Plan and the Other Postemployment Benefit
Plans. Employer contribution rates during the period were based on the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation, which
became effective July 1, 2019. The state of Oregon and certain schools, community colleges, and political subdivision
have made unfunded actuarial liability payments and their rates have been reduced. Employer contributions for the year
ended June 30, 2021 were $0, excluding amounts to fund employer specific liabilities. In addition approximately
$1,713,799 in employee contributions were paid or picked up by the District in fiscal 2021.
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At June 30, 2021, the District reported a net pension liability of $15,785,496 for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated December 31, 2018. The District’s proportion of
the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. As of the measurement
date of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District’s proportion was .07 percent and 0 percent, respectively. The District’s rates
are noted below and are low due to a large side account with Oregon PERS, the amount was $72,382,207 according to
PERS latest actuarial calculations. Pension expense for the year was $4,964,491.
The rates in effect for the year ended June 30, 2021 were:
(1) Tier 1/Tier 2 – 0.06%
(2) OPSRP general services – 0%

Difference between expected and actual experience

Deferred Outflow

Deferred Inflow

of Resources

of Resources

$

Changes in assumptions

694,753

$

847,158

29,683

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments

1,856,169

Net changes in proportionate share

-

10,436,461

3,416,806

Differences between District contributions

-

and proportionate share of contributions

-

Subtotal - Amortized Deferrals (below)

1,631,604

13,834,541

District contributions subsequent to measuring date
Deferred outflow (inflow) of resources

5,078,093

$

13,834,541

$

5,078,093

The amount of contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be included as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.
Amounts reported as deferred outflows or inflow of resources related to pension will be recognized in pension expense
as follows:
Year ending June 30,
Amount
2022
$
2,131,867
2023
2,331,590
2024
1,673,333
2025
2,105,612
2026
514,047
Thereafter
Total
$
8,756,449
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All assumptions, methods and plan provisions used in these calculations are described in the Oregon PERS systemwide GASB 68 reporting summary dated March 5, 2021. Oregon PERS produces an independently audited ACFR which
can be found at:
https://www.oregon.gov/pers/Documents/Financials/ACFR/2020-ACFR.pdf
Actuarial Valuations – The employer contribution rates effective July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2021, were set using
the entry age normal actuarial cost method. For the Tier One/Tier Two component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan,
this method produced an employer contribution rate consisting of (1) an amount for normal cost (estimated amount
necessary to finance benefits earned by employees during the current service year), (2) an amount for the amortization
unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial
liabilities being amortized over 20 years.
For the OPSRP Pension Program component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an employer rate
consisting of (a) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount necessary to finance benefits earned by the employees
during the current service year), (b) an actuarially determined amount for funding a disability benefit component, and
(c) an amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed
period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized over 16 years.
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:
Valuation date
Experience Study Report
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Asset valuation method
Inflation rate
Investment rate of return
Discount rate
Projected salary increase
Cost of Living Adjustment

Mortality

December 31, 2018
2018, Published July 24, 2019
Entry Age Normal
Level percentage of payroll
Market value of assets
2.50 percent
7.20 percent
7.20 percent
3.50 percent
Blend of 2% COLA and graded COLA (1.25%/0.15%) in accordance with Moro
decision, blend based on service
Healthy retirees and beneficiaries:
Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security
Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the
valuation. Active members: Pub-2010 Employee, sex distinct, generational with
Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs
as described in the valuation. Disabled retirees: Pub-2010 Disabled Retiree, sex
distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category
adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Experience studies are
performed as of December 31 of even numbered years. The method and assumptions shown are based on the 2018
Experience Study which is reviewed for the four-year period ending December 31, 2018.
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Assumed Asset Allocation:
Asset Class/Strategy Low Range High Range OIC Target
Debt Securities
15.0%
25.0%
20.0%
Public Equity
27.5%
37.5%
32.5%
Real Estate
9.5%
15.5%
12.5%
Private Equity
14.0%
21.0%
17.5%
Alternative Investments
7.5%
17.5%
15.0%
Opportunity Portfolio
0.0%
3.0%
0.0%
Risk Parity
0.0%
2.5%
2.5%
Total
100.0%

(Source: June 30, 2020 PERS ACFR; p. 102)
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return:

To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in May, 2019 the
PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman’s capital market assumptions team and the
Oregon Investment Council’s (OIC) investment advisors. The table below shows Milliman’s assumptions for each of
the asset classes in which the plan was invested at that time based on the OIC long-term target asset allocation. The
OIC’s description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes shown below. Each asset
class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes adjustment for the inflation
assumption. These assumptions are not based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-looking capital
market economic model.
Target Compound Annual
Asset Class
Allocation (Geometric) Return
Core Fixed Income
9.60%
4.07%
Short-Term Bonds
9.60%
3.68%
Bank/Leveraged Loans
3.60%
5.19%
High Yield Bonds
1.20%
5.74%
Large/Mid Cap US Equities
16.17%
6.30%
Small Cap US Equities
1.35%
6.68%
Micro Cap US Equities
1.35%
6.79%
Developed Foreign Equities
13.48%
6.91%
Emerging Market Equities
4.24%
7.69%
Non-US Small Cap Equities
1.93%
7.25%
Private Equity
17.50%
8.33%
Real Estate (Property)
10.00%
5.55%
Real Estate (REITS)
2.50%
6.69%
Hedge Fund of Funds - Diversified
1.50%
4.06%
Hedge Fund - Event-driven
38.00%
5.59%
Timber
1.13%
5.61%
Farmland
1.13%
6.12%
Infrastructure
2.25%
6.67%
Commodities
1.13%
3.79%
Assumed Inflation - Mean
2.50%
(Source: June 30, 2020 PERS ACFR; p. 74)
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Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.20 percent for the Defined Benefit
Pension Plan. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from the
plan members and those of the contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially
determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return
on pension plan investments for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.
Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate – The following
presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.20 percent,
as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.20 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.20 percent) than the current
rate.

1%

Discount

1%

Decrease

Rate

Increase

(6.20%)

(7.20%)

(8.20%)

District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability
$ 23,440,158 $
Changes Subsequent to the Measurement Date

15,785,496 $

9,366,707

As described above, GASB 67 and GASB 68 require the Total Pension Liability to be determined based on the benefit
terms in effect at the Measurement Date. Any changes to benefit terms that occurs after that date are reflected in amounts
reported for the subsequent Measurement Date. However, Paragraph 80f of GASB 68 requires employers to briefly
describe any changes between the Measurement Date and the employer’s reporting date that are expected to have a
significant effect on the employer’s share of the collective Net Pension Liability, along with an estimate of the resulting
change, if available.
There are no changes subsequent to the June 30, 2020 Measurement Date that meet this requirement and thus would
require a brief description under the GASB standard.
Deferred Compensation Plan
A deferred compensation plan is available to employees wherein they may execute an individual agreement with the
District for amounts earned by them to not be paid until a future date when certain circumstances are met. These
circumstances are: termination by reason of resignation, death, disability, or retirement; unforeseeable emergency; or
by requesting a de minimis distribution from inactive accounts valued less than $5,000. Payment to the employee will
be made over a period not to exceed 15 years. The deferred compensation plan is one which is authorized under IRC
Section 457 and has been approved in its specifics by a private ruling from the Internal Revenue Service. The assets of
the plan are held by the administrator for the sole benefit of the plan participants and are not considered assets or
liabilities of the District.
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OPSRP Individual Account Program (OPSRP IAP)
Plan Description:
Employees of the District are provided with pensions through OPERS. All the benefits of OPERS are established by the
Oregon legislature pursuant to Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) Chapters 238 and 238A. Chapter 238 Defined Benefit
Pension Plan is closed to new members hired on or after August 29, 2003. Chapter 238A created the Oregon Public
Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP), which consists of the Defined Benefit Pension Program and the Individual Account
Program (IAP). Membership includes public employees hired on or after August 29, 2003. PERS members retain their
existing defined benefit plan accounts, but member contributions are deposited into the member’s IAP account. OPSRP
is part of OPERS, and is administered by the OPERS Board.
Pension Benefits:
Participants in OPERS defined benefit pension plans also participate in their defined contribution plan. An IAP member
becomes vested on the date the employee account is established or on the date the rollover account was established. If
the employer makes optional employer contributions for a member, the member becomes vested on the earliest of the
following dates: the date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member
reaches normal retirement age, the date the IAP is terminated, the date the active member becomes disabled, or the date
the active member dies. Upon retirement, a member of the OPSRP IAP may receive the amounts in his or her employee
account, rollover account, and vested employer account as a lump-sum payment or in equal installments over a 5-, 10, 15-, 20-year period or an anticipated life span option. Each distribution option has a $200 minimum distribution limit.
Death Benefits:
Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in a lump sum the member’s account balance, rollover
account balance, and vested employer optional contribution account balance. If a retired member dies before the
installment payments are completed, the beneficiary may receive the remaining installment payments or choose a lumpsum payment.
Contributions:
Employees of the District pay six (6) percent of their covered payroll. The District made $1,713,79 contributions to
member IAP accounts for the year ended June 30, 2021.
Additional disclosures related to Oregon PERS not applicable to specific employers are available online, or by
contacting PERS at the following address: PO Box 23700 Tigard, OR 97281-3700.
http://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/Pages/GASB.aspx
7. POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS
Post Employment Health Care Benefits
Plan Description
The District administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan that covers both active and retired
participants. The plan provides post-retirement healthcare benefits for eligible retirees and their dependents through
the District’s group health insurance plans. The District’s post-retirement plan was established in accordance with
Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 243.303 which states, in part, that for the purposes of establishing healthcare premiums,
the calculated rate must be based on the cost of all plan members, including both active employees and retirees.
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Because claim costs are generally higher for retiree groups than for active members, the premium amount does not
represent the full cost of coverage for retirees. The resulting additional cost, or implicit subsidy, is required to be valued
under GASB Statement 75 related to Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB). Calculations are based on the OPEB
benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in effect at the time of each valuation and on the pattern of
sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to that point. Actuarial valuations for OPEB plans involve
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future, and
actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as results are compared to past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. Actuarial calculations of the OPEB plan reflect a long-term perspective. The
valuation date was July 1, 2020 and the measurement date was June 30, 2021.
Funding Policy
The District has not established a trust fund to finance the cost of post-employment health care benefits related to
implicit rate subsidies. Premiums are paid by retirees based on the rates established for active employees. Additional
costs related to an implicit subsidy are paid by the District on a pay-as-you-go basis. There is no obligation on the part
of the District to fund these benefits in advance. The District considered the liability to be solely the responsibility of
the District as a whole and it is allocated to the governmental statements.
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
The District engaged an actuary to perform a valuation as of July 1, 2020 using the Entry Age Normal, level percent of
salary Actuarial Cost Method. Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 healthy white collar male and female
mortality tables, set back one year for males. Mortality is projected on a generational basis using Scale BB for males
and females. Demographic assumptions regarding retirement, mortality, and turnover are based on Oregon PERS
valuation assumptions as of July 1, 2018. Election rate and lapse assumptions are based on experience implied by
valuation data for this and other Oregon public employers.
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Health Care Cost Trend

Medical and vision:
Year
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2030+

General Inflation

2% per year

Annual Pay Increases

3% per year

Mortality

Pub 2010 employee and retiree tables, sex distinct, projected generationally. Mortality is
projected on a generational basis using the Unisex Social Security Date Scale.

Disability

Based on Oregon PERS assumptions. Annual rates are based on employment classification,
gender, and duration from hire date.

Withdrawal

Based on Oregon PERS assumptions. Annual rates are based on employment classification,
gender, and duration from hire date.

Retirement

Based on Oregon PERS assumptions. Annual rates are based on age, Tier/OPSRP, duration of
service, and employment classification.

Pre-65 Trend
3.50%
4.00%
4.50%
5.00%
5.50%
6.00%
5.90%
5.80%
5.70%
5.60%
5.5-4.5%
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Changes in the Net OPEB Liability
Total OPEB Liability at June 30, 2020
Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Changes in benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions or other input
Benefit payments
Balance as of June 30, 2021

$ 4,036,644
278,922
94,864
(792,246)
(362,447)
(198,793)
$ 3,056,944

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate and Trend Rates
The following analysis presents the net OPEB liability using a discount rate of 3.5%, as well as what the City’s net
OPEB liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (2.5%) or one
percentage point higher (4.5%) than the current rate, a similar sensitivity analysis is presented for the changes in the
healthcare trend assumption:

Total OPEB Liability

1%
Decrease
1.25%
$ 3,309,784

Current
Discount Rate
2.25%
$
3,056,944

1%
Increase
3.25%
$
2,821,889

Total OPEB Liability

1%
Decrease
Healthcare
$ 2,675,053

Current
Trend Rate
Healthcare
$
3,056,944

1%
Increase
Healthcare
$
3,522,373

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB Benefits
The City reports information on deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources at year end as well as a schedule
of amounts of those deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that will be recognized in other
post-employment benefit expense for the following five years.
Deferred Outflows of
Resources
$
11,293
260,470
$
271,763

Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions or other input
Deferred outflow (inflow) of resources
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows or inflow of resources related to pension will be recognized in pension expense
as follows:
Year ending June 30,
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter
Total

$
$
$
$
$
$

Amount
(251,642)
(251,642)
(251,642)
(251,642)
(92,243)
(288,671)
(1,387,482)

8. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN (RHIA)
Plan Description:
As a member of Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) the District contributes to the Retirement
Health Insurance Account (RHIA) for each of its eligible employees. RHIA is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit other postemployment benefit plan administered by OPERS. RHIA pays a monthly contribution toward the cost
of Medicare companion health insurance premiums of eligible retirees. Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 238.420
established this trust fund. Authority to establish and amend the benefit provisions of RHIA reside with the Oregon
Legislature. The plan is closed to new entrants after January 1, 2004. OPERS issues a publicly available financial report
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to
Oregon Public Employees Retirement System, PO Box 23700, Tigard, OR 97281-3700.
Funding Policy:
Because RHIA was created by enabling legislation (ORS 238.420), contribution requirements of the plan members and
the participating employers were established and may be amended only by the Oregon Legislature. ORS require that an
amount equal to $60 dollars or the total monthly cost of Medicare companion health insurance premiums coverage,
whichever is less, shall be paid from the Retirement Health Insurance Account established by the employer, and any
monthly cost in excess of $60 dollars shall be paid by the eligible retired member in the manner provided in ORS
238.410. To be eligible to receive this monthly payment toward the premium cost the member must: (1) have eight
years or more of qualifying service in OPERS at the time of retirement or receive a disability allowance as if the member
had eight years or more of creditable service in OPERS, (2) receive both Medicare Parts A and B coverage, and (3)
enroll in an OPERS-sponsored health plan. A surviving spouse or dependent of a deceased OPERS retiree who was
eligible to receive the subsidy is eligible to receive the subsidy if he or she (1) is receiving a retirement benefit or
allowance from OPERS or (2) was insured at the time the member died and the member retired before May 1, 1991.
Participating districts are contractually required to contribute to RHIA at a rate assessed each year by OPERS, and the
District currently contributes 0.50% of annual covered OPERF payroll and 0.43% of OPSRP payroll under a contractual
requirement in effect until June 30, 2021. Consistent with GASB Statement 75, the OPERS Board of Trustees sets the
employer contribution rates as a measure of the proportionate relationship of the employer to all employers consistent
with the manner in which contributions to the OPEB plan are determined. The basis for the employer’s portion is
determined by comparing the employer’s actual, legally required contributions made during the fiscal year to the plan
with the total actual contributions made in the fiscal year of all employers. The District’s contributions to RHIA for the
years ended June 30, 2019, 2020 and 2021 were $122,917, $30,481 and $4,484, respectively, which equaled the required
contributions each year.
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At June 30, 2021, the District reported a net OPEB liability/(asset) of ($869,703) for its proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability/(asset). The OPEB liability/(asset) was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total OPEB
liability/(asset) used to calculate the net OPEB liability/(asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December
31, 2018. Consistent with GASB Statement No. 75, paragraph 59(a), the District’s proportion of the net OPEB
liability/(asset) is determined by comparing the employer’s actual, legally required contributions made during the fiscal
year to the Plan with the total actual contributions made in the fiscal year of all employers. As of the measurement date
of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District’s proportion was .427 percent and .246 percent, respectively. OPEB expense for
the year ended June 30, 2021 was 96,718.
Employer's proportionate share of collective system OPEB Expense/(Income) $
Net amortization of employer-specific deferred amounts from:
- Changes in proportionate share (per paragraph 64 of GASB 75)
- Differences between employer contributions and employer's proportionate
share of system contributions (per paragraph 65 of GASB 75)
Employer's Total OPEB Expense/(Income)
$

(139,883)
(102,049)
(241,932)

Components of Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources:

Difference between expected and actual experience

Deferred Outflow

Deferred Inflow

of Resources

of Resources

$

-

Changes in assumptions

$

88,909

-

46,229

96,718

-

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments
Net changes in proportionate share

-

189,374

Differences between District contributions
and proportionate share of contributions

-

Subtotal - Amortized Deferrals (below)

-

96,718

District contributions subsequent to measuring date
Deferred outflow (inflow) of resources

324,512

$

96,718

$

324,512

The amount of contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be included as a reduction of the net OPEB
liability/(asset) in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.
Amounts reported as deferred outflows or inflow of resources related to pension will be recognized in pension expense
as follows:
Year Ending June 30, 2021
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter
Total

$

$

Amount
(188,235)
(105,821)
35,753
30,509
(227,794)
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8. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN (RHIA)
All assumptions, methods and plan provisions used in these calculations are described in the Oregon PERS Retirement
Health Insurance Account Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Plan Schedules of
Employer Allocations and OPEB Amounts by Employer report, as of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2020. That
independently audited report was dated March 5, 2021 and can be found at:
https://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/Documents/GASB/2020/GASB_75_FYE_6.30.2020.pdf
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

Valuation Date
Experience Study Report
Actuarial cost method
Inflation rate
Investment rate of return
Discount rate
Projected salary increase
Retiree healthcare
participation

December 31, 2018
2018, Published July 24, 2019
Entry Age Normal
2.50 percent
7.20 percent
7.20 percent
3.50 percent
Healthy retirees: 32%; Disabled retirees: 20%

Healthy retirees and beneficiaries:
Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, sex distinct, generational with Unisex,
Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and setbacks as described in the valuation. Active members: Pub-2010
Employee, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data
Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the
valuation. Disabled retirees: Pub-2010 Disabled Retiree, sex distinct,
generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category
Mortality adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Experience studies are
performed as of December 31 of even numbered years. The method and assumptions shown are based on the 2018
Experience Study which is reviewed for the four-year period ending December 31, 2018.
Discount Rate:
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability as of the measurement date of June 30, 2020 was 7.20 percent.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from contributing employers
are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the RHIA plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments for the RHIA plan was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.
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8. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN (RHIA)
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return:
To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in May, 2019 the
PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman’s capital market assumptions team and the
Oregon Investment Council’s (OIC) investment advisors. The table below shows Milliman’s assumptions for each of
the asset classes in which the plan was invested at that time based on the OIC long-term target asset allocation. The
OIC’s description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes shown below. Each asset
class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes adjustment for the inflation
assumption. These assumptions are not based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-looking capital
market economic model.
Target Compound Annual
Asset Class
Allocation (Geometric) Return
Core Fixed Income
9.60%
4.07%
Short-Term Bonds
9.60%
3.68%
Bank/Leveraged Loans
3.60%
5.19%
High Yield Bonds
1.20%
5.74%
Large/Mid Cap US Equities
16.17%
6.30%
Small Cap US Equities
1.35%
6.68%
Micro Cap US Equities
1.35%
6.79%
Developed Foreign Equities
13.48%
6.91%
Emerging Market Equities
4.24%
7.69%
Non-US Small Cap Equities
1.93%
7.25%
Private Equity
17.50%
8.33%
Real Estate (Property)
10.00%
5.55%
Real Estate (REITS)
2.50%
6.69%
Hedge Fund of Funds - Diversified
1.50%
4.06%
Hedge Fund - Event-driven
38.00%
5.59%
Timber
1.13%
5.61%
Farmland
1.13%
6.12%
Infrastructure
2.25%
6.67%
Commodities
1.13%
3.79%
Assumed Inflation - Mean
2.50%

(Source: June 30, 2020 PERS ACFR; p. 74)
Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/(asset) to changes in the discount rate – The
following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/(asset) calculated using the discount rate
of 7.20 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.20 percent) or 1-perentage-point higher (8.20
percent) than the current rate.
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8. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN (RHIA)
1%

Discount

1%

Decrease

Rate

Increase

(6.20%)

(7.20%)

(8.20%)

District's proportionate share of
the net OPEB liability (asset)

$

(702,139) $

(869,703) $

(1,012,977)

Changes Subsequent to the Measurement Date
There are no changes subsequent to the June 30, 2020 Measurement Date that meet this requirement and thus would
require a brief description under the GASB standard.
9. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Pension Obligation Bonds
In October 31, 2002 and April 2003, the District issued $47,951,519 of limited tax pension obligation bonds to finance
its unfunded actuarially accrued liability (UAL) with the State of Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS).
The issuance of the bonds was considered an advance refunding of the District’s UAL and resulted in an estimated
present value savings of approximately $12.3 million over the life of the bonds. The actual savings realized by the
District over the life of the bonds is uncertain because of the various legislative changes and legal issues pending with
the PERS system which could impact the District’s future required contribution rate. The Pension Obligation Bonds
bear interest at 2.06% - 6.10% and mature on June 30, 2028.
Upon the occurrence and continuation of default on the 2002 bonds, the owners of 25% or more of the outstanding
principal of the 2002 bonds, or 51% or more of the 2003 bonds then outstanding may take any actions available at law
or in equity as may appear necessary or desirable to enforce or to protect any of the rights of the owners of the bonds,
whether for the specific enforcement of any covenant or agreement. However, the bonds shall not be subject to
acceleration.
General Obligation Bonds
On June 22, 2011, the District signed a purchase agreement to issue $63,000,000 of General Obligation Bonds. The
bonds were issued to pay for new construction and major renovation of District facilities. The bonds bear interest at
3.50-5.00% and mature on June 15, 2026. Included in the issue are $15,000,000 in Qualified School Construction Bonds,
which are part of an expiring federal stimulus program. Through the program, the District benefits because the federal
government pays the vast majority of interest on the Qualified School Construction Bonds. All of the interest was
initially being paid by the federal government, but starting in 2012-2013 the District has been required to pay minimal
amounts of interest due to the federal sequester. The District estimates that it will save nearly $7,000,000 in interest
expense over the life of the bonds.
The payment of the principal and interest on these bonds when due is guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the State
of Oregon under the provisions of the Oregon School Bond Guaranty Act – Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 328.321
and 328.356. Upon the occurrence and continuation of default on the bonds, the owners of 51% or more of the
outstanding principal of the bonds then outstanding may take any actions available at law or in equity as may appear
necessary or desirable to enforce or to protect any of the rights of the owners of the bonds, whether for the specific
enforcement of any covenant or agreement.
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Changes in bonds outstanding are as follows:
Issue Date

Interest Rates

Outstanding June
30, 2020

Original Issue
$

21,009,781

$

14,255,000

Matured &
Redeemed

Issued

October 2002

2.06-6.1%

April 2003

2.06-6.1%

26,941,738

13,465,000

-

-

13,465,000

August 2011

3.50-5.00%

63,000,000

35,550,000

-

4,875,000

30,675,000

63,270,000

-

4,875,000

58,395,000

4,098,887

-

948,952

3,149,935

Unamortized Premium/ (Discount)
Total Bonds Payable

$

67,368,887

$

-

$

$

Outstanding June
30, 2021

-

$

-

$

5,823,952

$

14,255,000

61,544,935

Future maturities of bond principal are as follows:
Fiscal Year
Ending June
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2026-2028
Total

2002 PERS Bonds
Principal
Interest

2003 PERS Bonds
Principal
Interest

1,590,000
1,795,000
2,015,000
2,255,000
2,510,000
4,090,000

788,963
701,830
603,285
491,452
366,300
299,145

2,735,000
3,055,000
2,855,000
4,820,000

$ 14,255,000

$3,250,975

$ 13,465,000

$

2011 GO Bonds
Principal
Interest

3,187,922
3,337,922
762,922
609,464
435,940
273,776

5,265,000
5,690,000
4,720,000
15,000,000
-

1,451,300
1,190,000
905,500
716,700
716,700
-

8,607,946

$ 30,675,000

$ 4,980,200

Changes in compensated absences for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows:
Balance
Oustanding
June 30, 2020
Compensated Absences Payable
Totals

Additions

169,491
$

67,538,378

Deductions
169,491

177,681
$

177,681

-3851

$

169,491

Oustanding

Due Within

June 30, 2021

One Year

177,681
$

177,681

177,681
$

177,681
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10. DEFERRED COMPENSATION
The District has a deferred compensation plan available for its employees wherein they may execute an individual
agreement with the District for amounts earned by them to not be paid until a future date when certain circumstances
are met. These circumstances are: termination by reason of death, disability, resignation, or retirement. Payment to the
employee will be made over a period not to exceed 15 years. The deferred compensation plan is one, which is authorized
under IRC Section 457 and has been approved in its specifics by a private ruling from the Internal Revenue Service.
11. RISK MANAGEMENT
The District is self-insured for medical, dental, vision and for certain policy deductible limits on District vehicles, errors
and omissions and the first $1,000 of property/fire losses. The District purchases insurance for worker’s compensation,
liability claims and all property losses in excess of deductible limits. There were no significant reductions in the
District’s insurance coverage during the current fiscal year. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage
for any of the past three years.
12. INTERFUND ACTIVITY
Interfund balances and Transfers are used to fund operations between funds. Interfund transfers are clearly segregated
and shown on the face of the financial statements.
13. PROPERTY TAX LIMITATIONS
The voters of the State of Oregon approved ballot Measure 5, a constitutional limit on property taxes for schoolsand
non-school government operations, in November, 1990 (now Article XI, Section 11b). School operations include
community colleges, local school districts and education service districts. The limitation provides that property taxes
for school operations are limited to $5.00 for each $1,000 of property market value. This limitation does not apply to
taxes levied for principal and interest on general obligation bonded debt. The result of this initiative has been that school
districts have become more dependent upon state funding and less dependent upon property tax revenues for the major
source of operating revenue. The voters of the State of Oregon passed ballot Measure 50 in May 1997 to further reduce
property taxes by replacing the previous constitutional limits on tax bases with a rate and value limit.
Measure 50 reduced the amount of operating property tax revenues available to the District for its 1997-98 fiscal year,
and thereafter. This reduction is accomplished by rolling assessed property values back to their 1995-96 values less
10%, and limiting future tax value growth of each property to no more than 3% per year, subject to certain exceptions.
Taxes levied to support bonded debt are exempted from the reductions. The Measure also sets restrictive voter approval
requirements for most tax and many fee increases and new bond issues, and requires the State of Oregon to minimize
the impact of the tax cuts to school districts.
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14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The District receives a substantial portion of its operating funding from the State of Oregon. State funding is determined
through state wide revenue projections that are paid to individual school districts based on pupil counts and other factors
in the state school fund revenue formula. Since these projections and pupil counts fluctuate they can cause the District
to either have increases or decreases in revenue. Due to these future uncertainties at the state level, the future effect on
the District’s operations cannot be determined.
The District is involved in various claims and legal matters relating to its operations which have all been tendered to,
and are either being adjusted by the District’s liability carrier, or are being defended by attorneys retained by the
District’s liability carrier. A liability of $200,000 is booked for potential future settlements.
The Covid-19 outbreak in the United States has caused disruption through mandated and voluntary closure of both
government and business activities. These developments are expected to impact District revenue. While the disruption
is currently expected to be temporary, there is considerable uncertainty around the duration. Therefore, while the District
expects this matter to negatively impact its operating results, the related financial impact and duration cannot be
reasonably estimated at this time.
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY - OREGON PERS
(a)
(b)
(b/c)
Employer's
Employer's
(c)
NPL as a
Year
proportion of
proportionate share
Employer's
percentage
Ended
the net pension
of the net pension
covered
of covered
June 30,
liability (NPL)
liability (NPL)
payroll
payroll
2021
0.072 % $
(15,785,496) $
30,356,658
-52%
2020
0.000
27,456,992
0%
2019
0.050
(7,137,649)
24,591,791
-29%
2018
0.005
(621,590)
23,392,566
-3%
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - OREGON PERS
Contributions in
Statutorily
relation to the
required
statutorily required
contribution
contribution
2021
$
$
2020
2019
2018
-

Contribution
deficiency
(excess)
$

-

$

Employer's
covered
payroll
28,575,831
30,356,658
27,456,992
24,591,791

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY - OREGON RHIA
(a)
(b)
(b/c)
Employer's
Employer's
(c)
NPL as a
Year
proportion of
proportionate share
Employer's
percentage
Ended
the net pension
of the net pension
covered
of covered
June 30,
liability (NPL)
liability (NPL)
payroll
payroll
(869,703) $
30,356,658
-3%
2021
0.42 % $
2020
0.25
(474,946)
27,456,992
-2%
2019
0.23
(256,487)
24,591,791
-1%
2018
0.22
(92,146)
23,392,566
0%

Plan fiduciary
net position as
a percentage of
the total pension
liability
75.8 %
80.2
82.1
83.1

Contributions
as a percent
of covered
payroll
%
-

Plan fiduciary
net position as
a percentage of
the total pension
liability
150.1 %
144.4
124.0
108.9

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - OREGON RHIA

2021
2020
2019
2018

Statutorily
required
contribution
$
4,484
30,481
122,917
110,695

Contributions in
relation to the
statutorily required
contribution
$
4,484
30,481
122,917
110,695

Contribution
deficiency
(excess)
$

-

$

Employer's
covered
payroll
28,575,831
30,356,658
27,456,992
24,591,791

Contributions
as a percent
of covered
payroll
%
0.001
0.004
0.005

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarial determined at 12/31 and rolled forward to the measurement date.
These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend
has been compiled, information is presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is available.
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SCHEDULE OF CHANGE IN THE DISTRICT'S NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

MEDICAL BENEFIT

Total OPEB Liablity - beginning
Service cost
Interest
Changes of benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual expe
Change of Assumptions and other input
Benefit Payments
Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB Liablity - end

2021
4,036,644
278,922
94,864
(792,246)
(362,447)
(198,793)
(979,700)
3,056,944

2020
3,609,908
269,490
129,876
364,658
(337,288)
426,736
4,036,644

2019
4,635,767
418,185
144,527
19,762
(1,135,557)
(472,776)
(1,025,859)
3,609,908

2018
4,873,523
265,474
140,531
(643,761)
(237,756)
4,635,767

2017
5,291,914
265,474
150,228
(834,093)
(418,391)
4,873,523

Fiduciary net position - beginning
Contributions - Employer
Contributions - Employee
Net Investment Income
Benefit payments
Administrative expense
Net change in fiduciairy net position
Fiduciary net position - end of year
Net OPEB Liability - end of year
Fiduciary net position as percentage of
the total OPEB liability
Covered Payroll
Net OPEB liability as percentage of covered payro

198,793
(198,793)
-

337,288
(337,288)
-

472,776
(472,776)
-

643,761
(643,761)
-

834,093
(834,093)
-

-

-

-

-

-

3,056,944

4,036,644

3,609,908

4,635,767

4,873,523

0%
32,862,524

0%
33,160,978

9%

12%
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0%
32,039,592
11%

0%
34,261,846
14%

0%
33,263,928
15%
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
GENERAL FUND

ORIGINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES:
Revenue From Local Sources:
Ad Valorem Taxes Levied by District
$
Revenue from Other Local Governments
Earnings from Investments
Rentals
Services Provided Other Local Education Agencies
Recovery of Prior Years' Expenditures
Fees Charged to Grants
Miscellaneous
Total Local Revenue
Revenue From Intermediate Sources:
County School Fund
Restricted Revenue
Total Intermediate Revenue
Revenue From State Sources:
State School Fund- General Support
Common School Fund
State Managed County Timber
Other Grants from State
Total State Revenue
Revenue From Federal Sources:
Unrestricted Revenue From Fed Gov't Through State
Federal Forest Fees
Total Federal Revenue
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction
Support Services
Enterprise and Community Services
Facilities, Acquisition and Construction
Debt Service
Contingencies
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over, (Under)
Expenditures
Other Financing Sources, (Uses):
Transfers Out
Sale of Fixed Assets
Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance
Beginning Fund Balance
Ending Fund Balance

FINAL
BUDGET

38,761,087
75,000
300,000
45,000
300,000
974,137

$

ACTUAL

38,761,087
75,000
300,000
45,000
300,000
974,137

$

39,440,376
14,886
204,343
44,072
169,918
25,510
355,307
354,209

$

679,289
(60,114)
(95,657)
(928)
169,918
25,510
55,307
(619,928)

40,455,224

40,455,224

40,608,621

300,000
174,000

300,000
174,000

403,144
138,462

103,144
(35,538)

474,000

474,000

541,606

67,606

23,239,458
539,989
500,000
-

23,239,458
539,989
500,000
-

22,113,487
488,250
667,662
435,754

(1,125,971)
(51,739)
167,662
435,754

24,279,447

24,279,447

23,705,153

(574,294)

74,000
-

74,000
-

4,181
251,057

(69,819)
251,057

74,000

74,000

255,238

181,238

65,282,671

65,282,671

65,110,618

40,778,508
28,111,817
852
5
1,600
750,000

39,300,474
27,488,451
852
5
3,000
750,000

69,642,782
(4,360,111)

(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)

153,397

(172,053)

35,127,349
24,832,666
3,000
-

4,173,125
2,655,785
852
5
750,000

67,542,782

59,963,015

7,579,767

(2,260,111)

5,147,603

7,407,714

(15)
-

(2,100,015) (1)
-

(2,100,000)
11,756

15
11,756

(15)

(2,100,015)

(2,088,244)

11,771

(4,360,126)

(4,360,126)

3,059,359

8,795,605
$

VARIANCE TO
FINAL BUDGET
POSITIVE
(NEGATIVE)

4,435,479

8,795,605
$

(1) Appropriation Level
-4357

4,435,479

7,419,485

10,788,891
$

13,848,250

1,993,286
$

9,412,771
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
SPECIAL FUNDS

ORIGINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES:
Local Sources:
Taxes - Prior Year Levies
Tuition
Earnings on Investments
School Sponsored Activities
Food Service Sales
Private Contributions
Recovery of Prior Year Expenditures
Miscellaneous

$

24,448
1,346,100
120,000
97,567
1,375,178

State Sources:
Basic School Support
Grants-In-Aid

25,000
11,383,324

25,000
11,383,324

96,400
7,243,902

71,400
(4,139,422)

Federal Sources:
Restricted Grants-In-Aid

10,099,270

15,173,675

10,728,735

(4,444,940)

24,473,902

29,548,307

20,700,033

(8,848,274)

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction
Support Services
Community Services
Facilities Acquisition and Construction

10,076,234
8,562,935
4,187,351
4,648,525

13,073,642
9,718,953
5,128,348
4,928,525

6,607,763
5,841,417
3,427,144
3,454,821

6,465,879
3,877,536
1,701,204
1,473,704

Total Expenditures

27,475,045

32,849,468

19,331,145

13,518,323

(3,001,143)

(3,001,143)

1,368,888

4,370,031

Excess of Revenues Over, (Under)
Expenditures
Other Financing Sources, (Uses):
Sale of Capital Assets
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources, (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance

(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)

10,413
2,300
11,480
412,166
23,803
235,860
34,402
1,900,572

$

7,398
2,300
(12,968)
(933,934)
(96,197)
138,293
34,402
525,394

450,000
2,100,005
(5) (1)

421,006
2,100,000
-

(28,994)
(5)
5

450,000

2,550,000

2,521,006

(28,994)

(751,161)
3,744,818

3,744,818
$

$

450,000
5
(5)

(2,551,143)

Beginning Fund Balance
Ending Fund Balance

$

ACTUAL

3,015
24,448
1,346,100
120,000
97,567
1,375,178

Total Revenues

3,015

FINAL
BUDGET

VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET
POSITIVE
(NEGATIVE)

1,193,675

$

(1) Appropriation Level
-4458

2,993,657

$

3,889,894

4,641,055

3,773,208

28,390

7,663,102

$

4,669,445
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SELF INSURANCE FUND

ORIGINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES:
From Local Sources:
Earnings on Investments
Services Charged Other Funds
Miscellaneous

$

Total Local Revenue

FINAL
BUDGET

21,500
1,385,000
35,000

$

21,500
1,385,000
35,000

VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET
POSITIVE
(NEGATIVE)

ACTUAL

$

12,595
1,575,346
35,628

$

(8,905)
190,346
628

1,441,500

1,441,500

1,623,569

182,069

1,676,530

1,676,530

1,162,674

513,856

Total Support Services

1,676,530

1,676,530 (1)

1,162,674

513,856

Total Expenditures

1,676,530

1,676,530

1,162,674

513,856

460,895

695,925

1,559,748

52,524

EXPENDITURES:
Support Services

Net Change in Fund Balance

(235,030)

Beginning Fund Balance
Ending Fund Balance

(235,030)

1,507,224
$

1,507,224

1,272,194

$

(1) Appropriation Level
-4560

1,272,194

$

2,020,643

$

748,449

LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
DEBT SERVICE FUND

ORIGINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES:
Revenue From Local Sources:
Taxes - Current Year's Levy
Taxes - Prior Years' Levies
Services Provided Other Funds
Interest Earnings

$

Total Revenues

FINAL
BUDGET

5,949,927
102,000
6,572,628
163,995

$

VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET
POSITIVE
(NEGATIVE)

ACTUAL

5,949,927
102,000
6,572,628
163,995

$

6,233,955
187,117
5,578,890
87,242

$

284,028
85,117
(993,738)
(76,753)

12,788,550

12,788,550

12,087,204

(701,346)

5,621,542
4,098,422

5,621,542
4,098,422

5,621,541
4,085,521

1
12,901

9,719,964

9,719,964 (1)

9,707,062

12,902

3,068,586

3,068,586

2,380,142

(688,444)

5

5

-

(5)

Net Change in Fund Balance

3,068,591

3,068,591

2,380,142

(688,449)

Beginning Fund Balance

8,382,517

8,382,517

8,652,208

269,691

EXPENDITURES:
Debt Service:
Principal on Bonded Indebtedness
Interest on Bonded Indebtedness
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over, (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources:
Transfer In

Ending Fund Balance

$

11,451,108

$

(1) Appropriation Level
-4661

11,451,108

$

11,032,350

$

(418,758)

LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ACTUAL AND BUDGET
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION FUND

ORIGINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES:
Revenue From Local Sources:
Taxes
Earnings on Investments

$

Total Revenues

480,000
15,000

$

495,000

EXPENDITURES:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over, (Under) Expenditure
Other Financing Sources:
Transfer In
Total Other Financing Sources
Net Change in Fund Balance
Beginning Fund Balance
Ending Fund Balance

FINAL
BUDGET

$

VARIANCE
TO FINAL
BUDGET
POSITIVE
(NEGATIVE)

ACTUAL

480,000
15,000

$

495,000

715,747
4,501

$

235,747
(10,499)

720,248

225,248

1,120,155

1,120,155 (1)

480,172

639,983

1,120,155

1,120,155

480,172

639,983

240,076

865,231

(625,155)

(625,155)

5

5

-

(5)

5

5

-

(5)

(625,150)

(625,150)

240,076

865,226

625,150

625,150

742,167

117,017

-

$

(1) Appropriation Level
-4762

-

$

982,243

$

982,243

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT REQUIRED
BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS

63

November 3, 2021
Independent Auditors’ Report Required by Oregon State Regulations
We have audited the basic financial statements of the Lincoln County School District as of and for the year ended June
30, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated November 3, 2021. We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards.
Compliance
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Lincoln County School District’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statues as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules
162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion.
We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and disclosures
which included, but were not limited to the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295)
Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment.
Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).
Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.
Programs funded from outside sources.
Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294).
Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C).
State School Fund factors and calculation

In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the Lincoln County School District
was not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the
provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of
the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations.

OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the internal controls over financial reporting as a basis for
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal controls over financial reporting.

-4864

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management and the Oregon
Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these parties.

Kenneth Allen, CPA
Municipal Auditor
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C

-4965
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
Federal
AL
Number

Pass Through
Entity Number

Period Covered

OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education

84.010
84.010
84.010
84.010
84.010
84.010

58299
53303
58904
54305
65122
60399

7/1/20-9/30/22
7/1/19-9/30/21
7/1/20-9/30/21
7/1/19-9/30/22
7/1/19-9/30/22
7/1/19-9/30/20

1,461,375
320,365
16,337
184,087
397,913
89,962
2,470,038

130,725

Title I State Agency Program for Neglected and Delinquent Children and Youth
Title ID - Neglected & Delinquent Children

OR Department of Education

84.013

12297

7/1/19-6/30/21

13,691

-

Education Stabilization
*Covid 19 -LEA ESSER Fund
*Covid 19 ESSER 2 Fund - CRRSA
*Covid 19 GEER Comprehensive Distance Learning

OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education

84.425
84.425
84.425

57846
64616
60974

3/31/20-9/30/22
3/31/20-9/30/22
7/1/20-5/30/21

Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants
Total Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants

1,296,214
1,314,853
342,477
2,953,544

119,389
32,942
30,854
183,185

OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education

84.367
84.367

49342
53565

7/1/18-9/30/21
7/1/19-9/30/22

94,645
60,795
155,440

1,620
1,620

English Language Acquisition State Grants
Title III - English Language Acquisition
Title III - English Language Acquisition
Total English Language Acquisition State Grants

OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education

84.365
84.365

50259
53431

7/1/18-9/30/21
7/1/19-9/30/22

27,298
14,850
42,147

-

Student Support and Academic Enrichment
Title IV-A - SSAE
Total Student Support and Academic Enrichment

OR Department of Education

84.424

58607

7/1/20-9/30/21

131,474
131,474

-

21st Century Community Learning Centers
Title IV-B - After School Learning Centers
Title IV-B - After School Learning Centers
Total 21st Century Community Learning

OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education

84.287
84.287

54269
61153

7/1/19-9/30/21
7/1/20-9/30/21

157,764
120,589
278,353

-

Rural Education
Title V-B - Rural and Low Income Schools
Title V-B - Rural and Low Income Schools
Total Rural Education

OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education

84.358
84.358

50877
55330

7/1/18-9/30/21
7/1/19-9/30/21

24,375
94,429
118,804

-

Education for Homeless Children and Youth
McKinney-Vento Homeless
McKinney-Vento Homeless
Total Education for Homeless Children and Youth

OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education

84.196
84.196

54906
65238

10/1/19-9/30/22
7/1/20-9/30/21

22,308
42,766
65,074

-

Special Education Grants to State Cluster
Extended Assessment Training
IDEA Part B Section 611 19-20 Formula
IDEA Part B Section 611 19-20 Formula
IDEA Part B Section 611 20-21 Formula
Long Term Care & Trtmt - IDEA Funds

OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education

84.027
84.027
84.027
84.027
84.027

59374
53861
56685
60689
12297

7/1/20-6/30/21
7/1/19-9/30/21
7/1/19-9/30/21
7/1/20-9/30/22
7/1/19-6/30/21

1,046
242,184
13,841
446,186
8,588
711,845

Special Education - Preschool Grants
Special Education - Preschool Grants

OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education

84.173
84.173

54007
60524

7/1/19-9/30/21
7/1/20-9/30/21

5,331
11,399
16,730

Program Title
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies
Title IA
Title IA
Title ID - Neglected & Delinquent Children
ESSA District & School Improvement 19-20
ESSA District & School Improvement 19-20
ESSA District & School Improvement 20-21
Total Title I Grants to Local Education Agencies

Pass Through Organization

Total Special Education Cluster

Expenditures

Passed Through
to Subrecipients

130,725

728,575

-

Rehabilitation Services Vocational Rehabilitation Grants to States
Youth Transition Program
Total Rehabilitation Services Vocational Rehabilitation Grants to States

OR Dept of Human Services

84.126A

160726

7/1/19-6/30/21

40,920
40,920

-

Indian Education Grants to Local Educational Agencies
Indian Education
Indian Education
Total Indian Education Grants to Local Educational Agencies

US Department of Education
US Department of Education

84.060A
84.060A

S060A190152
S060A200152

7/1/19-6/30/21
7/1/20-10/30/22

18,864
90,764
109,628

-
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Program Title
Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for Undergraduate Programs
GEAR UP
GEAR UP

Pass Through Organization
Oregon State University
Oregon State University

Federal
AL
Number

Pass Through
Entity Number

Period Covered

84.334
84.334

ED159A-U
ED159A-C

9/1/19-8/31/21
9/1/19-8/31/21

Expenditures
55,856
95,689

Total Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for Undergraduate Programs
School Safety National Activities
School Emergency Response to Violence (Project SERV)

151,545

US Department of Education

84.184S

S184S210001

11/13/20-11/12/21

Foster Care Title IV-E
Foster Care Transportations Reimbursement

7,338,474

OR Dept of Human Services

93.575

156224

7/1/20-6/30/21

2,918

OR Department of Education

93.658

57192

7/1/19-6/30/21

4,181

TOTAL US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Child Nutrition Cluster
National School Lunch Program - Commodities (non-cash)
Covid 19 -Summer Food Service Program
Summer Food Service Program
Total Child Nutrition Cluster

OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education

10.555
10.555
10.559

2112001
2112001
2112001

-

79,239

TOTAL US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Child Care and Development Block Grant
Child Care Direct Provider Payments

Passed Through
to Subrecipients

7/1/20-6/30/21
7/1/20-6/30/21
7/1/20-6/30/21

315,531

7,099

-

242,393
85,111
2,009,783
2,337,287

-

Child and Adult Care Food Program
Total Child and Adult Care Food Program

OR Department of Education

10.558

2112001

7/1/20-6/30/21

834,905
834,905

-

Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable Program

OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education
OR Department of Education

10.582
10.582
10.582
10.582
10.582
10.582
10.582
10.582
10.582
10.582
10.582
10.582
10.582
10.582
10.582
10.582
10.582
10.582
10.582
10.582
10.582
10.582

54889
54891
54892
54894
54893
54818
54896
54895
54897
54898
54890
61223
61301
61302
61303
61304
61305
61306
61307
61308
61309
61310

10/1/19-9/30/20
10/1/19-9/30/20
10/1/19-9/30/20
10/1/19-9/30/20
10/1/19-9/30/20
10/1/19-9/30/20
10/1/19-9/30/20
10/1/19-9/30/20
10/1/19-9/30/20
10/1/19-9/30/20
10/1/19-9/30/20
10/1/20-9/30/21
10/1/20-9/30/21
10/1/20-9/30/21
10/1/20-9/30/21
10/1/20-9/30/21
10/1/20-9/30/21
10/1/20-9/30/21
10/1/20-9/30/21
10/1/20-9/30/21
10/1/20-9/30/21
10/1/20-9/30/21

6,726
6,048
8,536
6,073
5,036
8,536
12,194
1,820
5,036
1,975
4,438
7,900
16,081
15,065
12,706
15,376
21,077
5,046
20,800
5,500
4,800
14,960
205,727

-

3,377,920

-

TOTAL US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
US DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention
JJDP Title II Formula Grants

OR Department of Education

16.540

12380

4/1/20-9/30/20

164

TOTAL US DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

TOTAL GRANTS EXPENDED OR PASSED THROUGH TO SUBRECIPIENTS

$

164

-

10,723,657

315,531

Other Federal Revenue not federal awards
School Medicaid Billing

OR Dept of Human Services

Schools and Roads - Federal Forest Fees

Lincoln County

Total Federal Revenue

9,260
251,057

$
-50A-
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10,983,973

November 3, 2021

To the Board of Directors
Lincoln County School District
Lincoln County, Oregon

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing
Standards
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Lincoln County School District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated November 3, 2021.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,
we performed tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

-51-
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Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control or on compliance. This report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Kenneth Allen, CPA
Municipal Auditor

PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C.
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November 3, 2021
To the Board of Directors
Lincoln County School District
Lincoln County, Oregon
Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and on
Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Lincoln County School District’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in
the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2021. The major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable
to its federal programs.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the major federal programs based on our audit of
the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about compliance with those requirements
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of compliance.
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Lincoln County School District, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2021.
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each
major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance.
-5371

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Kenneth Allen, CPA
Municipal Auditor

PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C.
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditors’ report issued

Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

yes

no

Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

yes

none reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

yes

no

Any GAGAS audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with section 515(d)(2) of the Uniform Guidance?

yes

no

Material weakness(es) identified?

yes

no

Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

yes

FEDERAL AWARDS
Internal control over major programs:

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs:
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with section 200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance?

none reported

Unmodified

yes

no

IDENTIFICATION OF MAJOR PROGRAMS
AL NUMBER

NAME OF FEDERAL PROGRAM CLUSTER

84.425
Education Stabilization Fund
10.558
Child and Adult Care Food Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

$750,000
yes

-5573

no

LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
No findings were noted during the audit for 2020-2021.
SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONS COSTS:
No findings were noted during the audit for 2020-2021.
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes federal grant activity under programs of the
federal government. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the audit requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion
of the operations, it is not intended to and does not present the net position, changes in net position, or cash flows
of the entity.
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures
are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowed or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the schedule represent
adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.
The entity has not elected to use the ten percent de minimus indirect cost rate as allowed under Uniform Guidance,
due to the fact that they already have a negotiated indirect cost rate with Oregon Department of Education, and thus
is not allowed to use the de minimus rate.
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA
January 11, 2022
ITEM: Information
TOPIC:

Financial Report

PREPARED BY:

Kim Cusick

WILL BE PRESENTED BY:
TYPE OF ITEM:

Kim Cusick

Consent

Information

Discussion

Decision

DESCRIPTION OF AGENDA ITEM:

The General Fund Summary Report, Bills and Claims, Special Revenue Fund Financial
Report, and the Investment Report as of December 31, 2021 will be distributed and
discussed at the January 11, 2022 Board Meeting.

RECOMMENDATION:

None; for information only.

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS:

Attached: Yes

75

No

Available: Yes

No

LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA
January, 11 2022
ITEM: Information
TOPIC:

First Student Written Report

PREPARED BY:

Eddie Symington

WILL BE PRESENTED BY:
TYPE OF ITEM:

First Student

Consent

Information

Discussion

Decision

DESCRIPTION OF AGENDA ITEM:

First Student’s Monthly Written Report

RECOMMENDATION:

None; for information only.

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS:

Attached: Yes
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No

Available: Yes

No

Board Meeting 01/11/2022-Report Prepared by Darleen Van Riper, Location Manager First Student
Talking Points-Please contact me at Darleen.vanriper@firstgroup.com with any comments or questions
1. LCSD, First Student, ODE Site Review Re-cap & Winter Weather

2.

Upon conclusion of the ODE Site Review on 12/09/2021, Craig Pruitt shared with the transportation team that, overall,
assets and ODE employee files were “looking good.” There were minor issues that needed to be addressed in both
areas, and they have already been corrected. The final report will be sent directly to the district.
With the winter months come winter storms, and during this Holiday season, a lot of us here in Lincoln County
experienced a “White Christmas.” Unfortunately, this weather caused service interruption for a few athletic trips that
were scheduled from 12/27/2021 to 12/29/2021, as the passes going east and a few hosting locations were inundated
with freezing temperatures and precipitation. Collaboratively, we decided to cancel all trips until the 29th and to review
trips for 12/30 and 12/31.
Retention & Recruiting: Ugly Sweater Contest & Social-Distance Potluck
Before the winter break, we held Holiday potlucks and Ugly Sweater in each area. Management provided the hams,
and our employees contributed to the festivities with their signature holiday dish. Everybody enjoyed the good food
and the social-distanced and masked gettogether. A highlight of the afternoon the potluck were the many “ugly”
sweaters that brightened the rooms and brought many smiles to the faces. Each winner of this year’s Ugly Sweater
Contest received a $25.00 Amazon Gift Card, so they can invest in next year’s Ugly Sweater:

West Winner “Naomi-W79”

East Winner “Kent-E59”

North Winner “Ellis-N29”

South Winner-“Annie-S43”

3. Driver/Candidate Comparison Report (as of 12/029/2021)

Please note that this data changes daily.

4. Driver Shortage Routing & Staffing Solutions

With staff shifting in and out of LOAs as well as losing and gaining drivers, we ended up with one addition to our
available driver pool. By rearranging student transportation plans to be more efficient in routing and duration, we were
also able to add one route back to the serviceable routes.
During the winter break, we also reviewed several of our routes, focusing on the west, to balance out load counts. This
process not only helps with shorter run times, but it also allowed us to distribute students more evenly in hopes to
lessen the student management issues that surface on overcrowded routes.
We will continue to think outside the box to be as efficient as possible.

5. Athletic & Educational Fieldtrips

Unfortunately, the driver shortage has not spared our trip driver pool, and we are working closely with Majalise Tolan,
Rich Belloni, Sarah Monroe and all ADs to make trips happen. We encourage district staff to support our students by
getting Type 20 certified or even getting their CDL to help cover routes & trips. For more information, please contact
Sarah Monroe at 541-574-9487.
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA
January 11, 2022
ITEM: Information
TOPIC:

Board Reports

PREPARED BY:

Eddie Symington

WILL BE PRESENTED BY:
TYPE OF ITEM:

School Board Members

Consent

Information

Discussion

Decision

DESCRIPTION OF AGENDA ITEM:

School Board members will report “good news” items and events occurring in each of their
respective regions.
1. General Area Reports

RECOMMENDATION:

None; for information only.

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS:

Attached: Yes
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No

Available: Yes

No

LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA
January 11, 2022
ITEM: Discussion
TOPIC:

Superintendent’s Report

PREPARED BY:

Eddie Symington

WILL BE PRESENTED BY:
TYPE OF ITEM:

Superintendent Gray

Consent

Information

Discussion

Decision

DESCRIPTION OF AGENDA ITEM:

Superintendent Gray will review the following:
a) School Update
i. Omicron Variant Update
b) 2023 Centennial Birthday of LCSD Planning Begins
c) Policy Update- First Readings of Policy IFA, KGBB

RECOMMENDATION:

None; for information only.

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS:

Attached: Yes
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No

Available: Yes

No

VanLiew, Susan
To- LCSDAllPersonnel
Staff,
Two things:
1. Omicron surge has arrived. Prevention of disease is a layered approach, so every action
can help reduce your risk of illness. Wear a well-fitting mask in public when you are around
people. Consider upgrading the level of your mask protection. Stay at least 6 feet from those
who do not live with you. Increase cleaning in your environment and washing your hands.
Refrain from touching your mouth, nose, and eyes. Improve ventilation. For example, open
windows or gather outside.
2. The best protection against severe disease and death from the latest COVID-19 variant is to
be up to date on your vaccinations. A chart describing what “up to date” means is below. This is
new language being used by OHA in regard to vaccinations and the need to quarantine. ODE is
still waiting for clarification before sending out K-12 guidance. It is still unclear how this will
impact the K-12 system, if at all. Please be advised though that this would be a change in
practice for LCPH quarantines. Stay Tuned!

Vaccination Status

Definition

UP TO DATE
What to do:
Positive for COVID-19
-Have symptoms: isolate for at least 5 days after
illness onset and until 24 hours after fever is gone,
without use of antipyretics, and COVID-19
symptoms (cough and shortness of breath) are
improving.
-No Symptoms: isolate for at least 5 days after the
date you tested positive.
* If an asymptomatic case develops symptoms compatible
with COVID-19 (e.g., fever, cough, diarrhea, new loss of
taste or smell, or shortness of breath) before the end of
their initial isolation period, the five-day isolation period
should be re-started on the date of symptom onset.
Close Contact of Positive Case
- Does not need to quarantine but must wear a
mask around others for 10 days following their
exposure.
- If symptoms develop, take a test and stay home.
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Boosted
or
Completed the primary series of Pfizer or Moderna
within the last 6 months
or
Completed the primary series of J&J within the last
2 months

NOT UP TO DATE
What to do:
Positive for COVID-19
Same instructions as above.
Close Contact of Positive Case
- Quarantine for 5 days following exposure and
remain masked when around others for an
additional five days. days following their
exposure. If symptoms develop, take a test and stay
home.
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Unvaccinated
or
Has not completed the primary series of any
COVID-19 vaccine
or
Completed the primary series of Pfizer or Moderna
over 6 months ago and is not boosted
or
Completed the primary series of J&J over 2 months
ago and is not boosted

OSBA Model Sample Policy
Code:
Adopted:

IFA

Instructional Research
The district has the responsibility to engage in long-range educational planning in order to advise the
Board regarding policy and effective decision making. The district is committed to the position that
planning must be supported by appropriate research and evaluation.
The superintendent will establish formal procedures through which district personnel can submit
educational research proposals. A major purpose of such research is to contribute to the quality of
educational programming and advance the general welfare of students.
Objectives include:
1.

Inducing change in the curriculum and techniques under conditions which are conducive to the
growth of the educational program;

2.

Encouraging and coordinating creative efforts so that duplication, conflict and waste of time may
be avoided;

3.

Facilitating the teacher-learning process and developing greater effectiveness in teaching;

4.

Creating a climate for professional growth through creativity and innovation;

5.

Establishing criteria for change in educational practices through innovative development and
creativity.

Proposals to involve the district in research originating from sources other than district personnel require
prior approval from the superintendent. The basic premise for involving the district in research is the
ability of the district to use results.
END OF POLICY
Legal Reference(s):
ORS 332.107
ORS 329.704
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, 20 U.S.C. § 1232g (2012); Family Educational Rights and Privacy, 34
C.F.R. Part 99 (2017).
Protection of Pupil Rights, 20 U.S.C. § 1232h (2012); Student Rights in Research, Experimental Programs and Testing, 34
C.F.R. Part 98 (2017).
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OSBA Model Sample Policy
Code:
Adopted:

KGBB

Firearms Prohibited

{Oregon law has allowed members of the public possessing a concealed carry license to carry firearms on
district property in accordance with ORS 166.370(3)(g). Senate Bill (SB) 554 (2021) allows districts to
prohibit even those with concealed carry licenses from carrying firearms by adopting a policy and posting
notice at entry points.
OSBA considers this policy to be conditionally required because if the district wants to prohibit concealed
carry licensees from carrying firearms on district property, the district must adopt a policy. If the district
does not want to limit concealed carry licensees, the district does not need to adopt this policy.}
No person on grounds of the schools controlled by the Board (including in school buildings), will possess
any firearm 1, except when said firearm is possessed by a person who is not otherwise prohibited from
possessing the firearm, and is unloaded and locked in a motor vehicle. The exception provided in Oregon
Revised Statute (ORS) 166.370(3)(g) for concealed carry licensees (see ORS 166.291 and 166.292) does
not apply to the possession of firearms on grounds of the schools controlled by the Board. 2 Firearms under
the control of law enforcement personnel are permitted. The superintendent may authorize other persons to
possess weapons for courses, programs and activities when in compliance with law and board policy.
Any person violating or threatening to violate the above rules, as determined by the district, may be issued
a trespass citation, ejected from the premises and referred to law enforcement officials 3.
[The district will post clearly visible sign(s) at all normal points of entry to the school grounds subject to
this policy indicating that the affirmative defense described in ORS 166.370(3)(g) does not apply. The
district will post on the district’s web pages designated for school board operations, identifying designated
school grounds that are subject to this policy.]
END OF POLICY
Legal Reference(s):
ORS 161.015
ORS 164.245
ORS 164.255
ORS 166.210 - 166.370
ORS 297.405
ORS 332.107
ORS 332.172
ORS 339.315

“Firearm” has the meaning given that term in ORS 166.210, except that it does not include a firearm that has been rendered
permanently inoperable.
1

2

See Senate Bill 554 (2021).

ORS 339.315 requires any district employee with reasonable cause to believe that a person is in possession of a firearm within
a school or has possessed a firearm within a school in violation of Oregon law in the previous 120 days report such information
to an administrator or law enforcement. A district employee with reasonable cause to believe that a person is in possession of a
firearm within a school or has possessed a firearm within a school in the previous 120 days in violation of Oregon law, may
report such information to law enforcement.

3
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Gun-Free Schools Act, 20 U.S.C. § 7961 (2018).
Senate Bill 554 (2021).
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LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA
January 11, 2022
ITEM: Consent
TOPIC:

Adoption of the Consent Agenda

PREPARED BY:

Eddie Symington

WILL BE PRESENTED BY:
TYPE OF ITEM:

Superintendent Gray

Consent

Information

Discussion

Decision

DESCRIPTION OF AGENDA ITEM:

Consent Agenda Items:
a. Minutes of the Board
1. November and December minutes
b. Human Resources
1. Regular Items
c. Board
1. Final Reading and Adoption of Policy
• Final Reading of ACB, ACB-AR(1), ACB-AR(2), JFCF, JFCF-AR(1),
JFCF-AR(2), IB, IGBHA, IGBHA-AR(1), IGBI, IGDJ, IIA, JB, JBB, JFC,
JFCJ, JHFE/GBNAB, JHFE/GBNAB-AR(1), JHFE/GBNAB-AR(2),
JHFF/GBNAA, GBNAA/JHFF-AR, DJA, IKF

RECOMMENDATION:

The Superintendent recommends the Board approve the Consent Agenda Items as
presented in the January 11, 2022 Board Folder.

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS:

Attached: Yes

No
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Available: Yes

No

Board Agenda— January 11, 2022 — Personnel Action
Temporary Licensed Hire(s):
Lee Ann Gabler

Special Education Teacher/Taft Elementary

Madi Feldman

Health Teacher/Taft 7-12

Michael Platt

Elementary Teacher/Oceanlake

Joanne Tomlin

Special Education Teacher/Oceanlake

Classified Hire(s):
Tamara Stoll

Special Education Teaching Asst/Siletz

Amanda Hockema

Employee Benefits Specialist/District Office

Melodie McKenzie

Title Teaching Asst/Yaquina View

Hunter Mix

Special Education Teaching Asst II/Newport High

Brittney Stamps

Special Education Teaching Asst II/Newport High

Anita Hernandez

Special Programs Asst & Customer Service Coord/District Office

Trinity Ewen

Special Education Teaching Asst/Waldport High

Resignation(s):

Sarah Monroe

Transportation Liaison
Facilities and Maintenance

Resignation
6/10/2013 – 1/14/2022

Jody James

Early Childhood Care Provider
Taft 7-12

Resignation
11/4/2021– 12/17/2021

Brittany Ray

Early Childhood Care Provider
Taft 7-12

Resignation
9/9/2021 – 12/10/2021

Joy Boeckman

Reading Specialist
Sam Case

Resignation
8/29/2011 – 12/17/2021

Terri Seifert

Title Teaching Asst
Yaquina View

Resignation
9/4/2020 – 12/8/2021

Kyla Sellers

Special Education Teaching Asst II
Newport High

Resignation
10/15/2021 – 12/17/2021
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Lisa Nicosia

Special Education Teacher
Taft Elementary
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Resignation
8/27/2021 – 12/17/2021

Code:
Adopted:

ACB

Every Student Belongs
All students are entitled to a high quality educational experience, free from discrimination or harassment
based on perceived race, color, religion, gender identity, sexual orientation, disability or national origin.
All employees are entitled to work in an environment that is free from discrimination or harassment based
on perceived race, color, religion, gender identity, sexual orientation, disability or national origin.
All visitors are entitled to participate in a school or educational environment that is free from
discrimination or harassment based on perceived race, color, religion, gender identity, sexual orientation,
disability or national origin.
“Bias incident” means a person’s hostile expression of animus toward another person, relating to the other
person’s perceived race, color, religion, gender identity, sexual orientation, disability or national origin, of
which criminal investigation or prosecution is impossible or inappropriate. Bias incidents may include
derogatory language or behavior.
“Symbol of hate” means nooses[ 1], symbols of neo-Nazi ideology or the battle flag of the Confederacy.
The district prohibits the use or display of any symbols of hate{ 2} on school property 3 or in an education
program 4 except where used in teaching curriculum that is aligned with state standards of education for
public schools.
The district prohibits retaliation against an individual{ 5} because that individual has in good faith reported
information that the individual believes is evidence of a violation of a state or federal law, rule or
regulation.
Nothing in this policy is intended to interfere with the lawful use of district facilities pursuant to a lease or
license.
The district will use administrative regulation ACB-AR - Bias Incident Complaint Procedure to process
reports or complaints of bias incidents.

[The display of a noose on public property with the intent to intimidate may be a Class A Misdemeanor under Senate Bill 398
(2021).]

1

{Prior to adopting the symbols of hate prohibition, or adding other symbols to the list, we recommend that the district
document why the district feels that the presence of these symbols will cause a “material and substantial interference with
schoolwork or discipline” or collide “with the rights of other students to be secure and be let alone.” These reasons may include
previous incidents, current conditions in the schools and other factors.}

2

3

“School property” means any property under the control of the district.

4

“Education program” includes any program, service, school or activity sponsored by the district.

{ORS 659.852 prohibits retaliation only against students. Other statutes (and other complaint procedures) prohibit retaliation
against staff and others for reporting or providing information regarding a complaint or investigation.}

5
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END OF POLICY
Legal Reference(s):
ORS 659.850
ORS 659.852
OAR 581-002-0005

OAR 581-022-2312
OAR 581-022-2370

Tinker v. Des Moines Indep. Cmty. Sch. Dist., 393 U.S. 503 (1969).
Dariano v. Morgan Hill Unified Sch. Dist., 767 F.3d 764 (9th Cir. 2014).
State v. Robertson, 293 Or. 402 (1982).
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House Bill 2697 (2021)
House Bill 3041 (2021)

Lincoln County School District
Code:
Adopted:
Orig. Code:

ABC-AR(2)
12/7/21
ACB-AR(2)

Bias Incident Complaint Form
Name of complainant:
Position of complainant:
Date of complaint:
Name of person responsible for the bias incident:
Date and place of incident or incidents:

Description of misconduct:

Name of witnesses (if any):
Evidence (attach evidence if possible):

Any other information:

I agree that all of the information on this form is accurate and true to the best of my knowledge.
Signature:
cc:

Date:

District Office
Lincoln County School District
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1212 NE Fogarty Street Newport, OR 97365
WITNESS DISCLOSURE FORM
Name of Witness:
Position of Witness:
Date of Testimony/Interview:
Description of Instance Witnessed:

Any Other Information:

I agree that all the information on this form is accurate and true to the best of my knowledge.
Signature:
cc:

Date:

District Office
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ACB-AR

Code:
Adopted:

Bias Incident Complaint Procedure
The terms “bias incident” and “symbols of hate” are defined in policy. Persons impacted by a bias incident
or display of a symbol of hate shall be defined broadly to include persons directly targeted by an act, as
well as the community of students as a whole who are likely to be impacted by the act. 1
Step 1{ 2}: When a staff member learns of a potential bias incident or display of a symbol of hate, the staff
member will prioritize the safety and well-being of all persons impacted and promptly report
the incident to the building or program administrator.
Step 2:

The administrator or designee shall acknowledge receipt of the complaint, reduce the
complaint to writing, and investigate any complaint of a bias incident. Responding staff will
recognize the experience of all persons impacted, acknowledge the impact, commit to taking
immediate action, and commit to preventing further harm against those persons impacted from
taking place. Educational components and redirection procedures, if any, will:
•
•
•
•

Address the history and impact of bias and hate;
Advance the safety and healing of those impacted by bias and hate;
Promote accountability and transformation for people who cause harm; and
Promote transformation of the conditions that perpetuated the harm.{ 3}

The administrator or designee must consider whether the behavior implicates other district
policies or civil rights laws, and if so, respond accordingly 4.
The administrator or designee will make a decision within 10 days of receiving the complaint.
All persons impacted by the act will be provided with information 5 relating to the investigation
and outcome of the investigation, including:
•
•
•

Notice that an investigation has been initiated;
Notice when an investigation has been completed;
Findings of the investigation and the final determination based on those findings;

The term “complainant” in this administrative regulation includes persons filing formal complaints and persons reporting bias
incidents, regardless of whether the complainant is a victim. Similarly, the term “complaint” includes any report, information or
complaint.

1

2
{These specific steps and procedures are not required.The procedures must include all of the requirements listed in House Bill
2697 § 1(3)(e) (2021) and OAR 581-022-2312(4)(e). If making changes, we recommend working closely with legal counsel.}
3

{Additional guidance from ODE can be found here.}

The nature of the behavior or act must determine the process used to respond; what rights and protections are available to the
person(s) impacted by the behavior or act; and an individual’s right to appeal to the Oregon Department of Education or the
U.S. Department of Education.

4

5

For additional information regarding required notices, see OAR 581-022-2312(4)(e)(E).
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•
•

Actions taken to remedy a person’s behavior and prevent reoccurrence; and
When applicable, the legal citation of any law prohibiting disclosure of any information
described above, and an explanation of how that law applies to the current situation.

Step 3:

If the complainant is not satisfied with the decision at Step 2, he/she may submit a written
appeal to the district director or administrator. Such appeal must be filed within 5 working
days after receipt of the Step 2 decision. The district director or administrator will arrange such
meetings with the complainant and other affected parties as deemed necessary to discuss the
appeal. The district director or administrator shall provide a written decision to the
complainant’s appeal within 10 working days.

Step 4

If the complainant is not satisfied with the decision at Step 3, he/she may submit a written
appeal to the superintendent. Such appeal must be filed within 5 working days after receipt of
the Step 2 decision. The superintendent will arrange such meetings with the complainant and
other affected parties as deemed necessary to discuss the appeal. The superintendent shall
provide a written decision to the complainant’s appeal within 10 working days.

Step 5

If the complainant is not satisfied with the decision at Step 4, a written appeal may be filed
with the Board. Such appeal must be filed within 5 working days after receipt of the Step 4
decision. The Board Chair shall review the written appeal and within 10 working days, provide
a written decision to the complainant.

Complaints can be filed with or communicated directly to the administrator or designee, in which case
Step 1 will be skipped. Complaints against the administrator can be directed to the Disrict Director and
will begin at Step 3. Complaints against the superintendent or a Board member(s) can be directed to the
Board and will begin at Step 5. If complaints begin later than Step 1, the individuals reviewing the
complaint will ensure that all requirements are met.
The complainant, if a person who resides in the district, or a parent or guardian of a student who attends
school in the district or a student, is not satisfied after exhausting local complaint procedures, the district
fails to render a written decision within 30 days of submission of the complaint at any step or fails to
resolve the complaint within 90 days of the initial filing of the complaint, may appeal 6 the district’s final
decision to the Deputy Superintendent of Public Instruction under Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR)
581-002-0001 – 581-002-0023.
Complaints may also be filed directly with the U.S. Department of Education Office for Civil Rights. 7
[Building administrators][District administration] will develop and implement instructional materials to
ensure that all school employees, staff and students are made aware of the policy, this administrative
regulation and related practices. The materials will include reporting procedures, educational processes,
and possible consequences.
[When necessary, timelines may be adjusted by the district by communicating to all parties in writing. This
communication must include a new timeline and an explanation of why the timeline must be adjusted.]
6

An appeal must meet the criteria found in OAR 581-002-0005(1)(a).

Complaints must meet criteria as established by law. For more information, visit
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/complaintintro.html

7
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Code:
Revised/Reviewed:

GBNAA/JHFF-AR

Suspected Sexual Conduct Report Procedures and Forms *
The district posts in each school building the names and contact information of the district employees{ 1}
designated for the respective school building to receive reports of suspected sexual conduct and the
procedures the designee(s) will follow upon receipt of the report.
When a designated licensed administrator 2 receives a report of suspected sexual conduct that may have
been committed by a commission licensee 3, the designee shall notify Teacher Standards and Practices
Commission (TSPC). The designee shall notify the Oregon Department of Education (ODE) if the
administrator receives a report of suspected sexual conduct that may have been committed by a school
employee, contractor, agent or volunteer that is not a commission licensee.
If the superintendent is the alleged perpetrator the report shall be submitted to the Assistant Superintendent
who shall refer the report to the Board chair.
The district will investigate all reports of suspected sexual conduct, unless otherwise requested by TSPC or
ODE as appropriate.
When the designee receives a report of suspected sexual conduct by a district employee, and there is
reasonable cause to support the report, the district shall place the district employee on paid administrative
leave 4 and take necessary actions to ensure the student’s safety. The employee shall remain on leave until

{ ORS 339.372 requires the district to post the names and contact information of the persons, i.e., a licensed administrator and
an alternate licensed administrator, who are designated to receive reports of sexual conduct for a school building, in the
respective school building. A “licensed administrator” is a person employed as an administrator by the district and holds an
administrative license issued by TSPC or may be a person employed by the district that does not hold an administrative license
issued by TSPC if the district does not require the administrator to be licensed by TSPC.}
1

A “licensed administrator” is a person employed as an administrator by the district and holds an administrative license issued
by TSPC or may be a person employed by the district that does not hold an administrative license issued by TSPC if the district
does not require the administrator to be licensed by TSPC.
2

“Commission licensee,” as is defined in ORS 342.120 (as amended by HB 2136 (2021)), means a person whom the TSPC has
authority to investigate or discipline because the person is enrolled in an approved educator preparation program, is an applicant
for a TSPC license or registration, holds a license or registration issued by TSPC, or has held a license or registration issued by
the TSPC at any time during the previous five years.
3

4

The district employee cannot be required to use any accrued leave during the imposed paid administrative leave.

94

TSPC 5 or ODE 6 determines that the report is substantiated and the district takes appropriate employment
action against the employee, or cannot be substantiated or is not a report of sexual conduct and the district
determines either: 1) an employment policy was violated and the district will take appropriate employment
action against the employee; or 2) an employment policy has not been violated and an employment action
against the employee is not required.
When the designee receives a report of suspected sexual conduct by a contractor{ 7}, an agent or a
volunteer, the district shall prohibit the contractor, agent or volunteer from providing services to the
district. If the district determines there is reasonable cause to support a report of suspected sexual conduct,
the district shall prohibit the contractor, agent or volunteer from providing services. The district may
reinstate the contractor, agent or volunteer, and such reinstatement may not occur until such time as a
report of suspected sexual conduct has been investigated and a determination has been made by TSPC or
ODE, as appropriate, that the report is unsubstantiated.
Upon request from ODE or TSPC the district will provide requested documents or materials to the extent
allowed by state and federal law.
The name, address and other identifying information about the employee who made the report are
confidential and are not accessible for public inspection.
An “investigation” means a detailed inquiry into the factual allegations of a report of suspected sexual
conduct that is based on interviews with the person who initiated the report, the person who may have
been subjected to sexual conduct, witnesses and the person who is the subject of the report, and results in a
finding that the report is a substantiated report, cannot be substantiated, or is not a report of sexual
conduct. If the subject of the report is a district employee represented by a contract or a collective
bargaining agreement, the investigation must meet any negotiated standards of such employment contract
or agreement.
Nothing prevents the district from conducting its own investigation, unless another agency requests to lead
the investigation or requests the district to suspend their investigation, or taking an employment action
based on information available to the district before an investigation conducted by another agency is
completed. The district will cooperate with agencies assigned to conduct such investigations.
A “substantiated report” means a report of sexual conduct that TSPC or ODE determines is founded.
If, following the investigation, the district decides to take an employment action, the district will inform
the district employee of the employment action to be taken and provide information about the appropriate
appeal process. [The employee may appeal the employment action taken through the appeal process
provided by the applicable collective bargaining agreement.

5

TSPC investigates reports on commission licensees.

6

ODE investigates reports on persons who are not commission licensees.

{The district is encouraged to duplicate this language in the contract. If the contract is with a company and the person assigned
to do the work is the alleged perpetrator, the district shall notify the company and request another company employee be
assigned to complete the work.}

7
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If the district is notified that the employee decided not to appeal the employment action or if the
determination of an appeal sustained the employment action, the district shall create a record of the
findings of the substantiated report and the employment action taken by the district will be placed in the
records on the school employee maintained by the district. Such records created are confidential and not
public records as defined in Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 192.311, however the district may use the
record as a basis for providing information required to be disclosed about a district employee under ORS
339.378(1). The district will notify the employee that information about substantiated reports may be
disclosed to a potential employer.
Training
The district shall provide information and training each school year to district employees on the following:
1.

Prevention and identification of sexual conduct;

2.

Obligations of district employees under ORS 339.388 and 419B.005 - 419B.050 and under adopted
board policies to report suspected sexual conduct; and

3.

Appropriate electronic communications with students.

The district shall make available each school year the training described above to contractors, agents,
volunteers and to parents and legal guardians of students attending district-operated schools, and will be
made available separately from the training provided to district employees.
The district shall provide to contractors, agents and volunteers each school year information on the
following:
1.

Prevention and identification of sexual conduct;

2.

Obligations of district employees under adopted board policies to report suspected sexual conduct;
and

3.

Appropriate electronic communications with students.

The district shall make available each school year training that is designed to prevent sexual conduct to
students attending district-operated schools.
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[Name of School District]
SUSPECTED SEXUAL CONDUCT REPORT FORM
Name of person making report:
Position of person making report:
Name of person suspected of sexual conduct:
Date and place of incident or incidents:

Description of suspected sexual conduct:

Name of witnesses (if any):

Evidence of suspected sexual conduct, e.g., letters, photos, etc. (attach evidence if possible):

Any other information:

I agree that all of the information on this form is accurate and true to the best of my knowledge.
Signature:

Date:
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[Name of School District]
WITNESS DISCLOSURE FORM
Name of witness:
Position of witness:
Date of testimony/interview:
Description of instance witnessed:

Any other information:

I agree that all the information on this form is accurate and true to the best of my knowledge.
Signature:

Date:
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IB

Freedom of Expression
Students have a general right to freedom of expression within the school system. The district requires that
students exercise their rights fairly, responsibly and in a manner not disruptive to other individuals or to
the educational process.
Freedom of Student Inquiry and Expression
1.

Generally, students and student organizations are free to examine and discuss questions of interest to
them and to express opinions publicly and privately within the school system, provided such
examination and expression is fair and responsible and is not disruptive to other individuals or to the
educational process. Students may support or oppose causes by orderly means which do not disrupt
other individuals or the operation of the school.

2.

In the classroom, students are free to examine views offered in any course of study, provided such
examination is expressed in a responsible manner.

Freedom of Association
Students are free to organize associations to promote their common interests. Student organizations should
be open to all students. Membership criteria may not exclude students on the basis of age, race, religion,
color, national origin, disability, marital status, familial status, parental status, linguistic background,
culture, socioeconomic status, capability, geographic location, sex, sexual orientation or gender identity.
Each student organization must have a staff adviser to counsel and, when necessary, supervise students in
the organization. All student organizations must submit to the school a statement of purpose, criteria for
membership, rules and procedures. School administrators may establish reasonable rules and regulations
governing the activity of student organizations.
Publications K-8, Displays and Productions
On occasion, materials such as leaflets, newsletters, cartoons and other items including displays and
productions are prepared, produced and/or distributed by students as part of the educational process and
free expression in an academic community. Materials may be reviewed by the administrator or may be
restricted or prohibited pursuant to legitimate educational concerns. Such concerns include:
1.

The material is or may be defamatory;

2.

The material is inappropriate based on the age, grade level and/or maturity of the audience;

3.

The material is poorly written, inadequately researched, biased or prejudiced;

4.

Whether there is an opportunity for a named individual or named individuals to make a response;

5.

Whether specific individuals may be identified even though the material does not use or give names;
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6.

The material is or may be otherwise generally disruptive to the school environment. Such disruption
may occur, e.g., if the material uses, advocates or condones the use of profane language or advocates
or condones the commission of unlawful acts;

7.

Students, parents and members of the public might reasonably perceive the materials to bear the
sanction or approval of the district.

High School Student Journalists
Generally, high school student journalists have the right to exercise freedom of speech and of the press in
school-sponsored media. “School-sponsored media” means materials that are prepared, substantially
written, published or broadcast by student journalists; that are distributed or generally made available,
either free of charge or for a fee, to members of the student body; and that are prepared under the direction
of a student media adviser. School-sponsored media does not include media intended for distribution or
transmission solely in the classrooms in which they are produced.
School-sponsored media prepared by student journalists are subject to reasonable time, place and manner
restrictions, pursuant to state and federal law. School-sponsored media cannot contain material that:
1.

Is libelous or slanderous;

2.

Is obscene, pervasively indecent or vulgar;

3.

Is factually inaccurate or does not meet journalistic standards established for school-sponsored
media;

4.

Constitutes an unwarranted invasion of privacy;

5.

Violates federal or state law or regulation; or

6.

So incites students as to create a clear and present danger of:
a.
b.
c.

The commission of unlawful acts on or off school premises;
The violation of district or school policies; or
The material and substantial disruption of the orderly operation of the school. A school official
will base a forecast of material and substantial disruption on specific facts, including past
experience in the school and current events influencing student behavior, and not on
undifferentiated fear or apprehension.

Modifications or removal of items may be appealed in writing to the superintendent. The superintendent
shall schedule a meeting within three school days of receiving the written appeal. Those present at the
meeting shall include the individual(s) making the appeal, the individual(s) who made the decision to
modify or remove materials and the superintendent. At the superintendent’s discretion, the district’s legal
counsel may also attend the meeting. Previous to the final appeal decision, the superintendent may consult
with teachers and media advisors in order to allow for an informed and well rounded decision. The
superintendent shall make a decision within three school days of the meeting. The superintendent’s
decision shall be final and binding on all parties.
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END OF POLICY
Legal Reference(s):
ORS 174.100
ORS 332.072
ORS 332.107

ORS 336.477
ORS 339.880
ORS 339.885

ORS 659.850
OAR 581-021-0050
OAR 581-021-0055

Equal Access Act, 20 U.S.C. §§ 4071-4074 (2018).
Westside Cmty. Bd. of Educ. v. Mergens, 496 U.S. 226 (1990).
Hazelwood Sch. Dist. v. Kuhlmeier, 484 U.S. 260 (1988).
U.S. CONST. amend. I; U.S. CONST. amend. XIV.
OR. CONST., art. I, § 8.
House Bill 3041 (2021).
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IGBHA

Alternative Education Programs**
The Board is dedicated to providing educational options for all students. It is recognized there will be
students in the district whose needs and interests are best served by participation in an alternative
education program.
“Alternative education program” means a school or separate class group designed to best serve students’
educational needs and interests and assist students in achieving the academic standards of the school
district and the state.
A list of alternative education programs will be approved by the Board annually. The superintendent may
provide for the involvement of staff, parents or guardians and the community in recommending alternative
education programs for Board approval, and in the development of related Board policy and an
administrative regulation. Annual evaluation of alternative education programs will be made in accordance
with Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 336.655 and Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 581-022-2505. The
superintendent will develop administrative regulations as necessary to evaluate the district’s alternative
education programs.
Alternative education programs will consist of instruction or instruction combined with counseling. These
programs may be public or private. A private alternative education program shall be registered with the
Oregon Department of Education. Alternative education programs must meet all the requirements set forth
in state law and rules, and federal law, as applicable. [A qualified district may contract with a qualified
private alternative education program to provide services to a qualified home-schooled child.]
Students, after consultation with a parent or guardian, may be placed in an alternative education program if
the district determines that the placement serves the student’s educational needs and interests, and assists
the student in achieving district and state academic content standards. Such placement must have the
approval of the student’s resident district and, as appropriate, the attending district. The district will also
consider and propose alternative education programs for students prior to expulsion or leaving school as
required by law.
The district shall pay the actual cost of an alternative education program or an amount equal to 80 percent
of the district’s estimated current year’s average per-student net operating expenditure, whichever is less.
When contracting with a private alternative education program, the district’s contract will meet the
requirements of law.
END OF POLICY
Legal Reference(s):
ORS 329.485
ORS 332.072
ORS 336.014
ORS 336.175
ORS 336.615 - 336.665
ORS 339.030

ORS 339.250
OAR 581-021-0045
OAR 581-021-0065
OAR 581-021-0070
OAR 581-021-0071
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OAR 581-022-2320
OAR 581-022-2505
OAR 581-023-0006
OAR 581-023-0008

Code:
Adopted:

IGBHA-AR(1)

Evaluation of Alternative Education Programs
(For use by the alternative education program coordinator)

Date
Dear Alternative Education Program Coordinator:
In accordance with Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 581-022-2505, the district is required to evaluate
alternative education programs annually. Please provide the documentation required below and return to
the Lincoln County School District office no later than May 1st annually. Please include the program name,
program coordinator and telephone number. A copy of the district’s written evaluation shall be provided to
the program coordinator.
Staff
1.

Have criminal records checks requirements been met?

*

Provide list of individuals subject to criminal records checks and copy of Form 581-2283-M from
the Oregon Department of Education (ODE).

Curriculum
1.

Are students receiving instruction in the state academic content standards and earning diploma
credits?

*

Attach supportive documentation including such evidence as program overview, curriculum guide,
course syllabi or other material that demonstrates that program curriculum is aligned with standards.

2.

Are statewide assessments administered and the results reported annually to students, parents and the
district?

*

Attach copy of summary report and sample of information reported to student, parents and the
district.

3.

Are students receiving, at least annually, a report of academic progress?

*

Attach copy of report used.

4.

Does the program meet the physical education requirements of Oregon Revised Statute (ORS)
329.496?

*

Attach the document that supports the physical education requirements.
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Discrimination
1.

Does the program comply with nondiscrimination requirements of law? (Program does not
discriminate based on age, disability, national origin, sexual orientation, gender identity, race, color,
marital status, religion or sex)

*

Attach student enrollment/withdrawal summary based on above criteria.

Registration (Private alternative education programs only)
1.

Is the program registered with the ODE?

*

Attach copy of the approval from ODE (including the institution identification number assigned by
ODE).

Site Evaluation
1.

Does the program comply with health and safety statutes and rules?

*

Attach copy of appropriate documentation, including first aid, emergency procedures plan, healthy
and safe schools plan, radon testing plan, such as staff/student handbooks, in-service agenda, plans,
fire marshal’s report, safety inspection reports, etc.

Tuition and Fees
1.

Does the program comply with Oregon Revised Statutes regarding tuition and fees (ORS 337.150,
339.141, 339.147, 339.155)?

*

Attach list of any fees required and explanation.

Contract
1.
*
2.
*

The program complies with any statute, rule or district policy specified in the contract with the
[public or] private alternative education program.
Attach as applicable.
Does the contract with the [public or] private alternative education program state that noncompliance
with a rule or statute may result in termination of the contract?
Contract on file with district and program, as applicable.

Expenditures
1.
*

Does the program comply with Oregon Revised Statutes regarding expenditures (ORS 336.635(4))?
Attach annual statement of expenditures.

Advertising
1.
*

Does the program meet the advertising requirements of ORS 339.122?
Attach a copy of the program description. Is it a virtual public school and is it advertised as such?

Superintendent
*

Dated

Compliance indicators are intended as examples only. District may modify, as appropriate.
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Adopted:

IGBI

Bilingual Education**
Students whose primary language is other than English will be provided appropriate assistance until they
are able to use English in a manner that allows effective, relevant participation in regular classroom
instruction and other educational activities.
Parents who are not able to use English in a manner that allows effective, relevant participation in
educational planning for their student will be provided with relevant written, verbal or signed
communication in a language they can understand.
END OF POLICY
Legal Reference(s):
ORS 336.079

OAR 581-021-0046

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d (2018).
Every Student Succeeds Act of 2015, 20 U.S.C. §§ 6801-7014 (2018).
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OAR 581-022-2310

Code:
Adopted:

IGDJ

Interscholastic Activities
The Board recognizes the integral role interscholastic activities play in the character development and
general enhancement of the education of its students. Accordingly, administrators, coaches, student
participants, and others associated with the district’s high school activities programs and events 1 shall
conduct themselves in a manner that is consistent with the letter and spirit of policies, rules, and
regulations of the district and of the Oregon School Activities Association (OSAA) and the fundamental
values of sportsmanship. Each will be held accountable for their actions.
The district shall allow homeschooled students that reside in the district, students eligible to attend school
and enrolled in a district- or ESD-provided General Education Development (GED) program that reside in
the district, and students attending a public charter school that reside in the district to participate in
available interscholastic activities when the requirements found in Oregon law are met.
Interscholastic activities when provided by the district will comply with Title IX and other
nondiscrimination laws.
District employees, students, parents, alumni, and activity volunteers are prohibited from inducing or
attempting to induce a student to attend a district school for interscholastic activity eligibility or
participation. The principal, activities director, and coaches are each responsible for ensuring student
participants meet all district and OSAA eligibility requirements. The principal is responsible for ensuring
accurate certification regarding the eligibility of participating students and for verifying that athletic
directors, coaches of sports, and activity advisors have all required certifications prior to assuming their
duties. The principal shall ensure that a program is in place to effectively evaluate the performance of all
coaches and activity advisors under their supervision.
Volunteers may be approved to assist with district activities with prior approval from the principal.
The principal shall investigate all allegations of district student ineligibility, staff recruitment violations or
other student or staff conduct that may violate Board policies, administrative regulations, and/or OSAA
rules and regulations. The principal shall notify the superintendent of conduct that violates the terms of
this policy and report to the OSAA as required.
An employee determined to have violated rules and regulations of the OSAA will be subject to discipline,
up to and including, dismissal. A student in violation of the OSAA rules and regulations will be subject to
discipline, up to and including, dismissal from an interscholastic activity or program, suspension and/or
expulsion from school. Volunteers in violation of the OSAA rules and regulations shall be subject to
discipline, up to and including, removal from district programs and activities and such other sanctions as
may be deemed appropriate by the district.

1

This applies to only OSAA-sanctioned activities and events.
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Employees, volunteers, or students in violation of OSAA rules and/or regulations will be required to
remunerate the district in the event of fines assessed by OSAA as a result of their actions.
The superintendent will develop procedures, as necessary, to implement this policy, including a process to
ensure that all district rules governing the conduct of students, staff, and volunteers engaged in district
activities are regularly reviewed and updated.
END OF POLICY
Legal Reference(s):
ORS 326.051
ORS 332.075(1)(e)
ORS 339.450 - 339.460

OAR 581-015-2255
OAR 581-021-0045 - 0049
OAR 581-026-0005

OAR 581-026-0700
OAR 581-026-0705
OAR 581-026-0710

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683; Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education
Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance, 34 C.F.R. Part 106.
OREGON SCHOOL ACTIVITIES ASSOCIATION, OSAA HANDBOOK.
Montgomery v. Bd. of Educ., 188 Or. App. 63 (2003).
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Graduation Requirements

(If the district has additional credit or graduation requirements above the state requirements, the district is
required to include those additional credits and graduation requirements in the following list)
The Board establishes graduation requirements for awarding of a high school diploma, a modified
diploma, an extended diploma, and an alternative certificate which meet or exceed state requirements.
A student may satisfy graduation requirements in less than four years. The district will award a diploma to
a student fulfilling graduation requirements in less than four years if consent is given by the student’s
parent or guardian or by the student if the student is 18 years of age or older or emancipated.
If the district requires diploma requirements beyond the state requirements, the district shall grant a waiver
for those requirements to any student who, at any time from grade 9 to 12, was:
1.

A foster child 1;

2.

Homeless;

3.

A runaway;

4.

A child in a military family covered by the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for
Military Children;

5.

A child of a migrant worker; or

6.

Enrolled in the Youth Corrections Education Program or the Juvenile Detention Education Program.

For any student identified above, the district shall accept any credits earned by the student in another
district or public charter school, applying those credits toward the state requirements for a diploma if the
credits satisfied those requirements in that district or public charter school.
Diploma
A high school diploma will be awarded to students in grades 9 through 12 who complete a minimum of 24
credits,2 which include at least:
1.

1

Three credits of mathematics (shall include one unit at the Algebra I level and two units that are at a
level higher than Algebra I);

As defined in ORS 30.297.

If the district has additional credit or graduation requirements, the district is required to include those additional credits and
graduation requirements in the following list
2
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2.

Four credits of language arts (shall include the equivalent of one unit in written composition);

3.

Three credits of science;

4.

Three credits of social sciences (including history, civics3, geography and economics (including
personal finance));

5.

One credit in health education;

6.

One credit in physical education; and

7.

Three credits in career and technical education, the arts or world languages (units shall be earned in
any one or a combination).

The district shall offer students credit options provided the method for obtaining such credits is described
in the student’s personal education plan and the credit is earned by meeting requirements described in
Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 581-022-2025.
To receive a diploma, in addition to credit requirements, outlined in OAR 581-022-2000, a student must4:
1.

Develop an education plan and build an education profile;

2.

Demonstrate extended application through a collection of evidence;

3.

Participate in career-related learning experiences.
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Honors Diploma
In addition to the LCSD Standard Diploma requirements, students may earn an LCSD Honors Diploma by
earning 27 credits and completing the following additional requirements:
1.

Units of Credit
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.

2.

Three mathematics credits beyond Algebra 1;
Five fine or applied arts/world language, or CTE credits
Four credits of AP, IB, or college credit;
*Superintendent may approve an Honors Level or equally rigorous course
Complete two years of the same World Language;
Earn a 3.5 GPA through seven semesters;
One additional credit of CORE/CTE/FA/FL or AVID Tutor

School/Community Services
a.

Students must demonstrate active involvement in both a school activity and community
service in each year of high school attendance.

*All NHS students who qualify as an IB Diploma candidate qualify for the honors diploma
Modified Diploma
A modified diploma will be awarded only to students who have demonstrated the inability to meet the full
set of academic standards adopted by the State Board of Education for a diploma while receiving
reasonable modifications and accommodations. A modified diploma may only be awarded to a student
who meets the eligibility criteria below and other criteria, if applicable outlined in OAR 581-022-2010(3):
1.

Has a documented history of an inability to maintain grade level achievement due to significant
learning and instructional barriers; or

2.

Has a documented history of a medical condition that creates a barrier to achievement.

Having met the above eligibility criteria, a modified diploma will be awarded to students, who while in
grade nine through completion of high school, complete 24 credits which shall include:
1.

Three credits in language arts;

2.

Two credits in mathematics;

3.

Two credits in science;

4.

Two credits in social sciences (which may include history, civics, geography and economics
(including personal finance);

5.

One credit in health education;

6.

One credit in physical education; and
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7.

One credit in career technical education, the arts, or world languages (units may be earned in any
one or a combination).

Students may earn additional credits to earn a modified diploma pursuant to OAR 581-022-2010.
In addition to credit requirements as outlined in OAR 581-022-2010, a student must:
1.

Develop an education plan and build an education profile; and

2.

Demonstrate extended application through a collection of evidence.

Districts may make modifications to the assessment for students who seek a modified diploma when the
following conditions are met:
1.

For a student on an individualized education program (IEP) or Section 504 plan, any modifications
to work samples must be consistent with the requirements established in the IEP. Modifications
include practices and procedures that compromise the intent of the assessment through a change in
learning expectations, construct, or content that is to be measured, grade level standard, or measured
outcome of the assessment. This means that IEP or 504 school teams responsible for approving
modifications for a student’s assessment may adjust the administration of the assessment and/or the
assessment’s achievement standard;

2.

For a student not on an IEP or 504 plan, any modifications to work samples must have been
provided to the student during their instruction in the content area to be assessed and in the year in
which the student is being assessed, and modifications must be approved by the school team that is
responsible for monitoring the student’s progress toward the modified diploma.

Students not on an IEP or a Section 504 Plan may not receive modifications on the Smarter Balanced
assessment.
A student’s school team shall decide that a student should work toward a modified diploma no earlier than
the end of grade six and no later than two years before the student’s anticipated exit from high school.
A student’s school team may decide to revise a modified diploma decision.
A student’s school team may decide that a student who was not previously working toward a modified
diploma should work toward one when the student is less than two years from anticipated exit from high
school if the documented history has changed.
Beginning in grade five or beginning after a documented history to qualify for a modified diploma, the
district shall annually provide to the parents or guardians of the student, information about the availability
and requirements of a modified diploma.
Extended Diploma
An extended diploma will be awarded only to students who have demonstrated the inability to meet the
full set of academic content standards adopted by the State Board of Education for a diploma while
receiving modifications and accommodations. To be eligible for an extended diploma, a student must:
1.

While in grade nine through completion of high school, complete 12 credits, which may not include
more than six credits in a self-contained special education classroom and will include:
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a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.
2.

Two credits of mathematics;
Two credits of language arts;
Two credits of science;
Three credits of history, geography, economics or civics;
One credit of health;
One credit of physical education; and
One credit of the arts or a world language.

Have a documented history of:
a.
b.
c.

An inability to maintain grade level achievement due to significant learning and instructional
barriers; or
A medical condition that creates a barrier to achievement; or
A change in the student’s ability to participate in grade level activities as a result of a serious
illness or injury that occurred after grade eight.

Beginning in grade five or beginning after a documented history to qualify for an extended diploma, the
district shall annually provide to the parents or guardians of the student, information about the availability
and requirements of an extended diploma.
Alternative Certificates
Alternative certificates will be awarded to students who do not satisfy the requirements for a diploma, a
modified diploma, or an extended diploma if the students meet minimum requirements established by the
district.
Beginning in grade five or beginning after a documented history to qualify for an alternative certificate,
the district shall annually provide to the parents or guardians of the student, information about the
availability and requirements of an alternative certificate.
Other District Responsibilities
The district will ensure that students have onsite access to the appropriate resources to achieve a diploma,
a modified diploma, an extended diploma, or an alternative certificate at each high school. The district will
provide age-appropriate and developmentally appropriate literacy instruction to all students until
graduation.
The district may not deny a student, the opportunity to pursue a diploma with more stringent requirements
than a modified diploma or an extended diploma for the sole reason the student has the documented
history listed under the above modified diploma or extended diploma requirements.
The district may award a modified diploma or an extended diploma to a student only upon the written
consent of a student whom is emancipated or who has reached the age of 18 at the time the modified or
extended diploma is awarded, or the student’s parent or guardian. The district shall receive the written
consent during the school year in which the modified diploma or the extended diploma is awarded.
A student shall have the opportunity to satisfy the requirements for a modified diploma, an extended
diploma or an alternative certificate in the later of 4 years after starting the ninth grade, or until the student
reaches the age of 21, if the student is entitled to a public education until the age of 21 under state or
federal law.
A student may satisfy the requirements for a modified diploma, an extended diploma, or an alternative
certificate in less than four years but not less than three years. To satisfy the requirements for a modified
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diploma, an extended diploma or an alternative certificate in less than four years, the student’s parent or
guardian or a student who is emancipated or has reached the age of 18 must provide written consent which
clearly states the parent, guardian or student is waiving the fourth year and/or years until the student
reaches the age of 21. A copy of the consent will be forwarded to the district superintendent who will
annually report to the Superintendent of Public Instruction the number of such consents.
A student who qualifies to receive or receives a modified diploma, an extended diploma, or an alternative
certificate shall have the option of participating in a high school graduation ceremony with the student’s
class.
A student who receives a modified diploma, an extended diploma, or an alternative certificate shall have
access to instructional hours, hours of transition services and hours of other services that are designed to
meet the unique needs of the student and when added together provide a total number of hours of
instruction and services that equals at least the total number of instructional hours that are required to be
provided to students who are attending a public high school.
The district will award to students with disabilities a document certifying successful completion of
program requirements. No document issued to students with disabilities educated in full or in part in a
special education program shall indicate that the document is issued by such a program. When a student
who has an IEP completes high school, the district will give the student an individualized summary of
performance.
Eligible students with disabilities are entitled to a Free Appropriate Public Education (FAPE) until the age
of 21, even if they have earned a modified diploma, an extended diploma, an alternative certificate, or
completion of a General Education Development document. The continuance of services for students with
disabilities for a modified diploma, extended diploma, or alternative certificate is contingent on the IEP
team determining the student’s continued eligibility and special education services are needed.
Students and their parents will be notified of graduation and diploma requirements.
The district may not deny a diploma to a student who has opted out of statewide assessments if the student
is able to satisfy all other requirements for the diploma. Students may opt-out of the Smarter Balanced or
alternate Oregon Extended Assessment by completing the Oregon Department of Education’s Opt-out
Form 2 and submitting the form to the district.
The district will issue a high school diploma, pursuant to Oregon law (ORS 332.114) to a veteran if the
veteran resides within the boundaries of the district or is an Oregon resident and attended a high school of
the district, or to a deceased veteran, upon request from a representative of the veteran, if the deceased
veteran resided within the boundaries of the district at the time of death or was an Oregon resident at the
time of death and attended a high school of the district..
The act of student-initiated test impropriety is prohibited. A student that participates in an act of studentinitiated test impropriety will be subject to discipline. “Student-initiated test impropriety” means student
conduct that is inconsistent with the Test Administration Manual or accompanying guidance; or results in a
score that is invalid.
END OF POLICY

5www.ode.state.or.us: Educator Resources - Student Assessment > Test Administration . Forms > 2018-19 30 day notice and
opt-out form
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Legal Reference(s):
ORS 329.045
ORS 329.451
ORS 329.479
ORS 332.107
ORS 332.114
ORS 339.115
ORS 339.505

ORS 343.295
OAR 581-021-0009
OAR 581-022-2000
OAR 581-022-2005
OAR 581-022-2010
OAR 581-022-2015

OAR 581-022-2020
OAR 581-022-2025
OAR 581-022-2030
OAR 581-022-2115
OAR 581-022-2120
OAR 581-022-2505

Test Administration Manual, published by the OREGON DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION.
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION Executive Numbered Memo 003-2015-16.
Cross Reference(s):
IKFA - Early Graduation
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Code:
Adopted:

JB

Equal Educational Opportunity[**]
Every student of the district will be given equal educational opportunities regardless of age, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identity, race 1, religion, color, national origin, disability, marital status, familial status,
parental status, linguistic background, culture, socioeconomic status, capability or geographic location.
[The district shall develop and implement an Equal Educational Opportunity Plan that assures that][n]o
student will be excluded from participating in, denied the benefits of, or subjected to discrimination under
any educational program or activity conducted by the district or denied access to facilities in the district.
[A student or parent may also access and use the district’s general complaint procedure through Board
policy KL - Public Complaints.]
All reports, complaints or information will be investigated.
[The district will communicate the availability of policy and available complaint procedures to students
and their parents through available district communication systems[,] [and] [handbooks] [and will be
published to the district website and made available at the district office during regular business hours].]
A student of the district may not be subjected to retaliation by the district for the reason that the student
has in good faith reported information that the student believes is evidence of a violation of a state or
federal law, rule or regulation.
END OF POLICY
Legal Reference(s):
ORS 174.100
ORS 192.630
ORS 326.051
ORS 329.025
ORS 332.107
ORS 336.086
ORS 659.850

ORS 659.852
ORS 659A.001
ORS 659A.003
ORS 659A.006
ORS 659A.103 - 659A.145
ORS 659A.400
ORS 659A.403

ORS 659A.406
OAR 581-021-0045
OAR 581-021-0046
OAR 581-022-2310
OAR 839-003-0000

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d (2018); 28 C.F.R. §§ 42.101-42.106 (2019).
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. §§ 791, 793-794 (2018); 34 C.F.R. Part 104 (2019).
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1683, 1701, 1703-1705 (2018); Nondiscrimination on the
Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance, 34 C.F.R. Part 106 (2020).
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213 (2018); 29 C.F.R. Part 1630 (2019); 28 C.F.R. Part 35
(2019).
Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12333 (2018).
House Bill 2935 (2021).
House Bill 3041 (2021).
Race also includes physical characteristics that are historically associated with race, including but not limited to natural hair,
hair texture, hair type and protective hairstyles as defined by ORS 659A.001 (as amended by House Bill 2935 (2021)).
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Code:
Adopted:

JBB

Educational Equity
The district is committed to the success of every student in each of our schools. For that success to occur,
the district is committed to equity by recognizing institutional barriers and creating access and
opportunities that benefit each student. “Achieving educational equity” means students’ identities will not
predict or predetermine their success in school.
Educational equity is based on the principles of fairness and justice in allocating resources, opportunity,
treatment and creating success for each student.
Educational equity promotes the real possibility of equality of educational results for each student and
between diverse groups of students. Equity strategies are intentional, systemic and focused on the core of
the teaching and learning process.
To achieve educational equity the district will commit to:
1.

Systematically using districtwide and individual school level data, disaggregated by [ 1race/ethnicity,
national origin, language, special education, sex, non-binary, socioeconomic status and mobility] to
inform district decision making.

2.

Raising the achievement of all students while narrowing the gap between the lowest and the highest
performing students.

3.

Eliminating the predictability and disparity in all aspects of education and its administration,
including but not limited to, the disproportionate representation of students by race, poverty, sex,
sexual orientation, gender identity, and national origin in discipline, special education and in various
advanced learning.

4.

Graduating all students ready to succeed in a diverse local, national and global community.

In order to achieve educational equity for each and every student:
1.

The district shall provide every student with equitable access to high quality curriculum, support,
facilities and other educational resources, even when this means differentiating resource allocation.

2.

The district shall review existing policies, programs, professional development and procedures for
the promotion of educational equity, and all applicable new policies, programs and procedures will
be developed with educational equity as a priority.

3.

The district shall actively work toward a balanced teacher and administrator workforce to reflect the
diversity of the student body. The district seeks to recruit, employ, support and retain a workforce

These are data categories that the Oregon Department of Education collects. Districts may choose to add to this list from data
the district collects.

1
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that includes racial, gender and linguistic diversity, as well as culturally and linguistically responsive
administrative, instructional and support personnel.
4.

The district shall provide professional development to strengthen employees’ knowledge and skills
for eliminating opportunity gaps and other disparities in achievement.

5.

The district shall create schools with a welcoming, inclusive culture and environment that reflects
and supports diversity of the student population, their families and their community.

6.

The district shall include partners who have demonstrated culturally specific expertise, including but
not limited to, families, government agencies, institutions of higher learning, early childhood
education organizations, community-based organizations, local businesses and the community in
general, in meeting our high goals for educational outcomes. The district shall seek to involve
students, staff, families and community members that reflect district demographics to inform
decisions regarding the narrowing of the achievement and other opportunity gaps.

7.

The district shall provide multiple pathways to success in order to meet the needs of the diverse
student body and shall actively encourage, support and expect high academic achievement for each
student.

8.

The district shall provide materials and assessments that reflect the diversity of students and staff
and are geared toward the understanding and appreciation of culture, class, language, ethnicity,
poverty, ability and other differences that contribute to the uniqueness of each student and staff
member.

The superintendent shall include equity practices in the district’s strategic plan strategies to implement this
policy. The superintendent will annually report to the Board the progress of the strategic plan.
END OF POLICY
Legal Reference(s):
ORS 174.100
ORS 332.075

ORS 332.107
ORS 342.437 - 342.449

House Bill 3041 (2021).
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Code:
Adopted:

JFC

Student Conduct**
(Version 1)

The Board expects student conduct to contribute to a productive learning climate. Students shall comply
with the district’s written rules, pursue the prescribed course of study, submit to the lawful authority of
district staff and conduct themselves in an orderly manner at school during the school day or during
district-sponsored activities.
Careful attention shall be given to procedures and methods whereby fairness and consistency without bias
in discipline shall be assured each student. The objectives of disciplining any student must be to help the
student develop a positive attitude toward self-discipline, realize the responsibility of one’s actions and to
maintain a productive learning environment. All staff members have responsibility for consistency in
establishing and maintaining an appropriate behavioral atmosphere.
A student handbook, code of conduct or other document shall be developed by district administration and
will be made available and distributed to parents, students and employees outlining student conduct
expectations and possible disciplinary actions, including consequences for disorderly conduct. In addition,
each school in the district shall publish a student/parent handbook detailing additional rules specific to that
school.
Students in violation of Board policy, administrative regulation and/or code of conduct provisions will be
subject to discipline up to and including expulsion. Students are subject to discipline for conduct while
traveling to and from school, at the bus stop, at school-sponsored events, while at other schools in the
district and while off campus, whenever such conduct causes a substantial and material disruption of the
educational environment or the invasion of rights of others. Students may be denied participation in
extracurricular activities. Titles and/or privileges available to or granted to students may also be denied
and/or revoked (e.g., valedictorian, salutatorian, student body, class or club office positions, senior trip,
prom, etc.). A referral to law enforcement may also be made.
Students are prohibited from making knowingly false statements or knowingly submitting false
information in bad faith as part of a complaint or report, or associated with an investigation into
misconduct. 1
The district will annually record and report expulsion data for conduct violations as required by the
Oregon Department of Education.
END OF POLICY
Legal Reference(s):
ORS 339.240

ORS 659.850

ORS 339.250

The district is prohibited from retaliating against any student “for the reason that the student has in good faith reported
information that the student believes is evidence of a violation of a state or federal law, rule or regulation.” ORS 659.852.

1
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OAR 581-021-0050 - 0075
Nondiscrimination on the Bases of Sex in Education Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance, 34 C.F.R.
Part 106 (2020).
Tinker v. Des Moines Sch. Dist., 393 U.S. 503 (1969).
Hazelwood Sch. District v. Kuhlmeier, 484 U.S. 260 (1988).
Bethel Sch. Dist. v. Fraser, 478 U.S. 675 (1986).
Shorb v. Grotting and Powers Sch. Dist., Case No. 00CV-0255 (Coos County Circuit Ct.) (2000).
Ferguson v. Phoenix Talent Sch. Dist. #4, 172 Or. App. 389 (2001).
Morse v. Frederick, 551 U.S. 393, 127 S. Ct. 2618 (2007).
C.R. v. Eugene S.D. 4J, No. 12-1042, U.S. District Court of OR (2013).
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Lincoln County School District

Code: JFCF-AR
Revised/Reviewed: 4/20/10; 6/14/16 (Effective
7/01/16); 6/4/19; 12/7/21
Orig. Code(s): JFCF-AR

Hazing/Harassment/Intimidation/Bullying/Menacing/Cyberbullying/Teen
Dating Violence Complaint Procedures – Student
Immediate supervising administrator has/have responsibility for investigations concerning hazing,
harassment, intimidation, or bullying, menacing, incidents of teen dating violence and acts of
cyberbullying. The investigator(s) shall be a neutral party having had no involvement in the complaint
presented.
All complaints will be investigated in accordance with the following procedures:
Step one

Any hazing, harassment, intimidation or bullying, menacing, incidents of teen dating violence
and acts of cyberbullying information (complaints, rumors, etc.) shall be presented to the
immediate supervising administrator. Complaints against the principal shall be filed with the
district director or administrator. Complaints against the district director or administrator shall
be filed with the superintendent. Complaints against the superintendent shall be filed with the
Board chair. All such information will be reduced to writing and will include the specific
nature of the offense and corresponding dates.

Step 2

The administrator receiving the complaint shall promptly investigate.
Parents will be notified of the nature of any complaint involving their student within a
reasonable amount of time. Generally, all notices should be made within 24 hours. In most
situations, parents will be notified by the end of the day.
Administrators are instructed to weigh the severity of the incident and consider the needs and
concerns of the student in determining when to provide notice. The notification is not required
if the immediate supervising administrator reasonably believes notification could endanger the
student who was subjected to an act of harassment, intimidation, bullying or cyberbullying, or
if the student requests that notification not be provided to the student’s parents or guardians.
Administrators will refer to Policy JFCF for the specific requirements of this exception.
Within 5 working days of receiving the complaint, the administrator conducting the
investigation will arrange a meeting as may be necessary with all concerned parties after the
receipt of the complaint. The parties will have an opportunity to submit evidence and/or a list
of witnesses to the administrator.
The administrator shall notify the complainant and parents as appropriate, in writing, within 5
working days, of the findings of the completed investigation, and that a decision regarding
disciplinary action, as warranted, is determined. Confidential student information such as
student discipline cannot be shared with anyone that is not able by law to receive such
information.
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A copy of the notification letter or the date and details of notification to the complainant,
together with any other documentation related to the incident, including disciplinary action
taken or recommended, shall be forwarded to the superintendent.
Step 3

If the complainant is not satisfied with the decision at Step 2, he/she may submit a written
appeal to the district director or administrator. Such appeal must be filed within 5 working
days after receipt of the Step 2 decision. The district director or administrator will arrange such
meetings with the complainant and other affected parties as deemed necessary to discuss the
appeal. The district director or administrator shall provide a written decision to the
complainant’s appeal within 10 working days.

Step 4

If the complainant is not satisfied with the decision at Step 3, he/she may submit a written
appeal to the superintendent. Such appeal must be filed within 5 working days after receipt of
the Step 2 decision. The superintendent will arrange such meetings with the complainant and
other affected parties as deemed necessary to discuss the appeal. The superintendent shall
provide a written decision to the complainant’s appeal within 10 working days.

Step 5

If the complainant is not satisfied with the decision at Step 4, a written appeal may be filed
with the Board. Such appeal must be filed within 5 working days after receipt of the Step 4
decision. The Board Chair shall review the written appeal and within 10 working days, provide
a written decision to the complainant.

Direct complaints related to educational programs and services may be made to the U.S. Department of
Education, Office for Civil Rights.
Documentation related to the incident may be maintained as a part of the student’s education records.
Additionally, a copy of all hazing, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, menacing, incidents of teen
dating violence, domestic violence, and acts of cyberbullying complaints and documentation will be
maintained as a confidential file in the district office.
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Code:
Adopted:

JFCF

Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Menacing, Cyberbullying, Teen Dating
Violence, or Domestic Violence – Student**
The Board, in its commitment to providing a safe, positive, and productive learning environment for all
students, will consult with parents/guardians, employees, volunteers, students, administrators, and
community representatives in developing this policy in compliance with applicable Oregon law.
Hazing, harassment, intimidation or bullying, menacing, and acts of cyberbullying by students, staff, or
third parties toward students is strictly prohibited in the district. Teen dating violence is unacceptable
behavior and prohibited. Each student has the right to a safe learning environment.
Retaliation against any person who is a victim of, who reports, is thought to have reported, or files a
complaint about an act of hazing, harassment, intimidation or bullying, menacing, an act of cyberbullying,
or teen dating violence, or otherwise participates in an investigation or inquiry is strictly prohibited. A
person who engages in retaliatory behavior will be subject to consequences and appropriate remedial
action. False charges shall also be regarded as a serious offense and will result in consequences and
appropriate remedial action.
Students whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy will be subject to consequences and
appropriate remedial action which may include discipline, up to and including expulsion.
Staff whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy will be subject to consequences and
appropriate remedial action which may include discipline, up to and including dismissal. Third parties
whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy shall be subject to appropriate sanctions as
determined and imposed by the superintendent or the Board.
Students, staff, or third parties may also be referred to law enforcement officials.
The immediate supervising administrator and the superintendent are responsible for ensuring that this
policy is implemented.
Definitions
“District” includes district facilities, district premises, and nondistrict property if the student is at any
district-sponsored, district-approved, or district-related activity or function, such as field trips or athletic
events where students are under the jurisdiction of the district.
“Third parties” include, but are not limited to, coaches, school volunteers, parents, school visitors, service
contractors, or others engaged in district business, such as employees of businesses or organizations
participating in cooperative work programs with the district and others not directly subject to district
control at interdistrict and intradistrict athletic competitions or other school events.
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“Hazing” includes, but is not limited to, any act that recklessly or intentionally endangers the mental
health, physical health or safety of a student for the purpose of initiation or as a condition or precondition
of attaining membership in, or affiliation with, any district-sponsored activity or grade level attainment[.]
[(i.e., personal servitude, sexual stimulation/sexual assault, forced consumption of any drink, alcoholic
beverage, drug or controlled substance, forced exposure to the elements, forced prolonged exclusion from
social contact, sleep deprivation or any other forced activity that could adversely affect the mental or
physical health or safety of a student);] [requires, encourages, authorizes or permits another to be subject
to wearing or carrying any obscene or physically burdensome article; or assignment of pranks to be
performed or other such activities intended to degrade or humiliate.] It is not a defense against hazing that
the student subjected to hazing consented to or appeared to consent to the hazing.
“Harassment, intimidation or bullying” means any act that substantially interferes with a student’s
educational benefits, opportunities or performance, that takes place on or immediately adjacent to district
grounds, at any district-sponsored activity, on district-provided transportation, or at any official district bus
stop, that may be based on, but not limited to, the protected class status of a person, and having the effect
of:
1.

Physically harming a student or damaging a student’s property;

2.

Knowingly placing a student in reasonable fear of physical harm to the student or damage to the
student’s property; or

3.

Creating a hostile educational environment including interfering with the psychological well-being
of the student.

“Protected class” means a group of persons distinguished, or perceived to be distinguished, by race, color,
religion, sex, sexual orientation 1, gender identity, national origin, marital status, familial status, source of
income, or disability.
“Teen dating violence” means:
1.

A pattern of behavior in which a person uses or threatens to use physical, mental, or emotional abuse
to control another person who is in a dating relationship with the person, where one or both persons
are 13 to 19 years of age; or

2.

Behavior by which a person uses or threatens to use sexual violence against another person who is in
a dating relationship with the person, where one or both persons are 13 to 19 years of age.

“Domestic violence” means abuse between family and/or household members, as those terms are
described in ORS 107.705.
“Cyberbullying” is the use of any electronic communication device to harass, intimidate or bully.
“Retaliation” means any acts of, including but not limited to, hazing, harassment, intimidation or bullying,
menacing, or cyberbullying toward the victim, a person in response to an actual or apparent reporting of,
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or participation in the investigation of, hazing, harassment, intimidation or bullying, menacing, teen dating
violence, acts of cyberbullying, or retaliation.
“Menacing” includes, any act intended to place a district employee, student, or third party in fear of
imminent serious physical injury.
Reporting
The immediate supervising administrator 2 will take reports and conduct a prompt investigation of any
reported acts of hazing, harassment, intimidation or bullying, menacing, cyberbullying, or teen dating
violence. Any employee who has knowledge of conduct in violation of this policy shall immediately report
concerns to the immediate supervising administrator who has overall responsibility for all investigations.
Any employee who has knowledge of incidents of teen dating violence that took place on district property,
at a district-sponsored activity, or in a vehicle used for district-provided transportation shall immediately
report the incident to the immediate supervising administrator. Failure of an employee to report any act of
hazing, harassment, intimidation or bullying, menacing, cyberbullying, or teen dating violence to the
immediate supervising administrator may be subject to remedial action, up to and including dismissal.
Remedial action may not be based solely on an anonymous report.
Any student who has knowledge of conduct in violation of this policy or feels they have been subjected to
an act of hazing, harassment, intimidation or bullying, menacing, or cyberbullying or feel they have been a
victim of teen dating violence in violation of this policy, is encouraged to immediately report concerns to
the immediate supervising administrator who has overall responsibility for all investigations. Any
volunteer who has knowledge of conduct in violation of this policy is encouraged to immediately report
concerns to the immediate supervising administrator. A report made by a student or volunteer may be
made anonymously. A student or volunteer may also report concerns to a teacher or counselor who will be
responsible for notifying the appropriate district official.
Reports against the principal shall be filed with the superintendent. Reports against the superintendent
shall be filed with the Board chair.
The person who makes the report shall be notified when the investigation has been completed and, as
appropriate, the findings of the investigation and any remedial action that has been taken. The person who
made the report may request that the superintendent or designee review the actions taken in the initial
investigation, in accordance with district complaint procedures.
Notification to Parents or Guardians
The immediate supervising administrator shall notify the parents or guardians of a student who was subject
to an act of harassment, intimidation, bullying or cyberbullying, and the parents or guardians of a student
who may have conducted an act of harassment, intimidation, bullying or cyberbullying.
The notification must occur with involvement and consideration of the needs and concerns of the student
who was the subject to an act of harassment, intimidation, bullying or cyberbullying. The notification is
not required if the immediate supervising administrator reasonably believes notification could endanger
[Required by ORS 339.356(2)(g). Other bracketed language regarding hazing and menacing exceeds the requirements of ORS
339.356 and is under Board authority ORS 332.107.]

2
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the student who was subjected to an act of harassment, intimidation, bullying or cyberbullying or if all of
the following occur:
1. The student who was subjected to an act of harassment, intimidation, bullying, or cyberbullying
requests that notification not be provided to the student’s parents or guardians.
2. The immediate supervising administrator determines that notification is not in the best interest of
the student who was subjected to an act of harassment, intimidation, bullying, or cyberbullying;
and
3. The immediate supervising administrator informs the student that federal law may require the
student’s parents and guardians to have access to the student’s education record, including any
requests of nondisclosure (from item 1 above).
If the immediate supervising administrator determines the notification is not in the best interest of the
student, they must inform the student of that determination prior to providing notification.
When notification is provided, the notification must occur:
1. Within a reasonable period of time; or
2. Promptly, for acts that caused physical harm to the student.
Training and Education
The district shall incorporate into existing training programs for students, information related to the
prevention of, and the appropriate response to, acts of harassment, intimidation or bullying, and acts of
cyberbullying and this policy.
The district shall incorporate age-appropriate education about teen dating violence and domestic violence
into new or existing training programs for students in grades 7 through 12.
The district shall incorporate into existing training programs for staff information related to the prevention
of, and the appropriate response to, acts of harassment, intimidation or bullying, teen dating violence,
domestic violence, and acts of cyberbullying and this policy.
Notice
The superintendent shall be responsible for ensuring annual notice of this policy is provided in a student or
staff handbook, school and district’s website, and school and district office and the development of
administrative regulations, including reporting and investigative procedures. Complaint procedures, as
established by the district, shall be followed.
Domestic violence posters provided by the Oregon Department of Education (ODE) shall be posted in
clearly visible locations on school campuses in accordance with rules adopted by ODE.
END OF POLICY
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Legal Reference(s):
[ORS 163.190]
[ORS 163.197]
ORS 107.705
ORS 166.065
ORS 166.155 - 166.165
ORS 174.100

ORS 332.072
ORS 332.107
ORS 339.240
ORS 339.250
ORS 339.351 - 339.368
OAR 581-021-0045

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d (2018).
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OAR 581-021-0046
OAR 581-021-0055
OAR 581-022-2310
OAR 581-022-2370
House Bill 2631 (2021)
House Bill 3041 (2021)

Lincoln County School District
Code:
Adopted:
Orig. Code:

JFCF-AR(2)
3/06/19
JFCF-AR(2)

Hazing/Harassment/Intimidation/Bullying/Menacing/Cyberbullying/
Teen Dating Violence Complaint Form
Name of complainant:
Position of complainant:
Date of complaint:
Name of person responsible for the bullying/harassment:
Date and place of incident or incidents:

Description of misconduct:

Name of witnesses (if any):
Evidence (attach evidence if possible):

Any other information:

I agree that all of the information on this form is accurate and true to the best of my knowledge.
Signature:
cc:

Date:

District Office
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Lincoln County School District
1212 NE Fogarty Street Newport, OR 97365
WITNESS DISCLOSURE FORM
Name of Witness:
Position of Witness:
Date of Testimony/Interview:
Description of Instance Witnessed:

Any Other Information:

I agree that all the information on this form is accurate and true to the best of my knowledge.
Signature:
cc:

Date:

District Office
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Code:
Adopted:

JFCJ

Weapons in Schools**
Students shall not bring, possess, conceal or use a weapon on or at any property under the jurisdiction of
the district, any activities under the jurisdiction of the district or any interscholastic activities administered
by a voluntary organization.
In accordance with the federal Gun-Free School Zone Act, possession or discharge of a firearm in a school
zone is prohibited. A “school zone,” as defined by federal law, means in or on school grounds or within
1,000 feet of school grounds.
The superintendent may authorize persons to possess weapons for courses, programs and activities
approved by the district and conducted on district property including, but not limited to, hunter safety
courses, weapons-related vocational courses or weapons-related sports. The district will post a notice at
any site or premise off district grounds that at the time is being used exclusively for a school program or
activity. The notice shall identify the district as the sponsor, the activity as a school function and that the
possession of firearms or dangerous weapons in or on the site or premises is prohibited under Oregon
Revised Statute (ORS) 166.370.
For purposes of this policy, and as defined by state and federal law, “weapon” includes:
1.

A “dangerous weapon” means any weapon, device, instrument, material or substance, which under
the circumstances in which it is used, attempted to be used or threatened to be used is readily capable
of causing death or serious physical injury;

2.

A “deadly weapon” means any instrument, article or substance specifically designed for and
presently capable of causing death or serious physical injury;

3.

A “firearm” means any weapon (including a starter gun) which will or is designed to or may readily
be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive, frame or receiver of any such
weapon, any firearm muffler or silencer or any destructive device;

4.

A “destructive device” includes but is not limited to any explosive, incendiary or poison gas
component or any combination of parts either designed or intended for use in converting any device
into any destructive device or from which a destructive device may be readily assembled. A
destructive device does not include any device which is designed primarily or redesigned primarily
for use as a signaling, pyrotechnic, line-throwing, safety or similar device.

Weapons may also include, but are not limited to, knives, metal knuckles, straight razors, noxious or
irritating gases, poisons, unlawful drugs or other items fashioned with the intent to use, sell, harm, threaten
or harass students, staff members, parents and community members.
Replicas of weapons, fireworks and pocket knives are also prohibited by Board policy. Exceptions to the
district’s replicas prohibition may be granted only with prior principal approval for certain curriculum or
school-related activities.
Prohibited weapons, replicas of weapons, fireworks and pocket knives are subject to seizure or forfeiture.
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In accordance with Oregon law, any district employee who has reasonable cause to believe a student or
other person, while in a school, is or within the previous 120 days has been in possession of a firearm or
destructive device, as defined by this policy, shall immediately report such violation to an administrator or
designee or law enforcement. Any district employee who has reasonable cause to believe that a person,
while in a school, is or has been in possession of a firearm or destructive device more than 120 days
previously, may report to law enforcement. Employees who report directly to law enforcement shall also
immediately inform an administrator.
Administrators shall promptly notify the appropriate law enforcement agency of staff reports received and
at any other time there is reasonable cause to believe violations for firearms or destructive devices have
occurred or that a student has been expelled for bringing, possessing, concealing or using a dangerous or
deadly weapon, firearm or destructive device.
A person making a report as described above who has reasonable grounds for making the report is immune
from liability, civil or criminal, that might otherwise be incurred or imposed with respect to the making or
content of the report. The identity of a person participating in a good faith report as described above may
not be disclosed except when allowed by law.
Parents will be notified of all conduct by their student that violates this policy.
Employees shall promptly report all other conduct prohibited by this policy to an administrator.
Students determined to have brought, possessed, concealed or used a firearm, as defined in policy, in
violation of this policy or state law shall be expelled from school for a period of not less than one year. All
other violations of the policy will result in discipline and may include expulsion and/or referral to law
enforcement, as appropriate. The superintendent may, on a case-by-case basis, modify this expulsion
requirement. The superintendent may propose alternative programs of instruction or instruction combined
with counseling that are appropriate and accessible to the student, and shall provide such information in
writing to the student and the parent in accordance with law 1. Appropriate disciplinary and/or legal action
will be taken against students or others who assist in activity prohibited by this policy.
Special education students shall be disciplined in accordance with federal law and Board policy JGDA –
Discipline of Students with Disabilities and accompanying administrative regulation.
“Gun-Free School Zone” signs will be posted in cooperation with city and/or county officials as
appropriate. Violations, unless otherwise excepted by law or this policy, shall be reported to the
appropriate law enforcement agency.
The superintendent will annually report the name of each school and the number of students from each
listed schools expelled for bringing, possessing, concealing or using a firearm to the Oregon Department
of Education.
END OF POLICY
Legal Reference(s):
ORS 161.015
1

ORS 166.210 - 166.370

ORS 166.382

At least once every six months or at any time the information changes because of the availability of new programs.
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ORS 332.107
ORS 339.115
ORS 339.240
ORS 339.250

ORS 339.315
OAR 581-021-0050 - 0075
OAR 581-053-0010(5)

Gun-Free School Zones Act of 1990, 18 U.S.C. §§ 921(a)(25)-(26), 922(q) (2018).
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 U.S.C. §§ 1400-1419 (2018).
Youth Handgun Safety Act, 18 U.S.C. §§ 922(x), 924(a)(6) (2018).
Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act, 20 U.S.C. §§ 7101, 7111-7121 (2018).
Oregon Senate Bill 554 (2021).
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OAR 581-053-0230(9)(k)
OAR 581-053-0330(1)(r)
OAR 581-053-0430(17)
OAR 581-053-0531(16)

Code:
Adopted:

JHFE/GBNAB

Suspected Abuse of a Child Reporting Requirements**
Any district employee who has reasonable cause to believe that any child with whom the employee has
come in contact has suffered abuse 1 shall orally report or cause an oral report immediately by telephone or
otherwise to the local office of the Oregon Department of Human Services (DHS) or its designee or to the
law enforcement agency within the county where the person making the report is located at the time of the
contact pursuant to Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 419B.010. Any district employee who has reasonable
cause to believe that any person 2 with whom the employee is in contact has abused a child shall
immediately report or cause a report to be made in the same manner to DHS or its designee or to the law
enforcement agency within the county where the person making the report is located at the time of the
contact pursuant to ORS 419B.010. If known, the report shall contain the names and addresses of the child
and the parents of the child or other persons responsible for the child’s care, the child’s age, the nature and
extent of the suspected abuse, including any evidence of previous abuse, the explanation given for the
suspected abuse, any other information that the person making the report believes might be helpful in
establishing the possible cause of the abuse and the identity of a possible perpetrator.
Abuse of a child by district employees, contractors 3, agents 4, volunteers 5, or students is prohibited and will
not be tolerated. All district employees, contractors, agents, volunteers and students are subject to this
policy and the accompanying administrative regulation.
Any district employee who has reasonable cause to believe that another district employee, contractor,
agent, volunteer or student has engaged in abuse, or that a student has been subjected to abuse by another
district employee, contractor, agent, volunteer or student shall immediately report such to the Oregon
Department of Human Services (DHS) or its designee or the local law enforcement agency pursuant to
ORS 419B.015, and to the designated licensed administrator.

1

Includes the neglect of a child; abuse is defined in ORS 419B.005.

2

“Person” could include adult, student or other child.

“Contractor” means a person providing services to the district under a contract in a manner that requires the person to have
direct, unsupervised contact with students.

3

“Agent” means a person acting as an agent for the district in a manner that requires the person to have direct, unsupervised
contact with students.

4

“Volunteer” means a person acting as a volunteer for the district in a manner that requires the person to have direct,
unsupervised contact with students.

5
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The district will designate a { 6}licensed administrator and an alternate licensed administrator, in the event
that the designated licensed administrator is the suspected abuser, for each school building to receive
reports of suspected abuse of a child by district employees, contractors, agents, volunteers or students.
If the superintendent is the alleged perpetrator the report shall be submitted to the Assistant Superintendent
who shall also report to the Board chair.
The district will post the names and contact information of the designees for each school building, in the
respective school, designated to receive reports of suspected abuse and the procedures in JHFE/GBNABAR(1) - Reporting of Suspected Abuse of a Child the designee will follow upon receipt of a report, the
contact information for local law enforcement and the local DHS office or its designee, and a statement
that this duty to report suspected abuse is in addition to the requirements of reporting to a designated
licensed administrator.
When a designee receives a report of suspected abuse, the designee will follow procedure established by
the district and set forth in administrative regulation JHFE/GBNAB-AR(1) - Reporting of Suspected
Abuse of a Child. All such reports of suspected abuse will be reported to a law enforcement agency or
DHS, or its designee, for investigation, and the agency will complete an investigation regardless of any
changes in the relationship or duties of the person who is the alleged abuser.
When there is reasonable cause to support a report, a district employee suspected of abuse shall be placed
on paid administrative leave pending an investigation and the district will take necessary actions to ensure
the student’s safety. When there is reasonable cause to support a report, a district contractor, agent or
volunteer suspected of abuse shall be removed from providing services to the district and the district will
take necessary actions to ensure the student’s safety.
The district will notify the person, as allowed by state and federal law, who was subjected to the suspected
abuse about any actions taken by the district as a result of the report.
A substantiated report of abuse by an employee shall be documented in the employee’s personnel file. A
substantiated report of abuse by a student shall be documented in the student’s education record.
The initiation of a report in good faith, pursuant to this policy, may not adversely affect any terms or
conditions of employment or the work environment of the person initiating the report or who may have
been subjected to abuse. If a student initiates a report of suspected abuse of a child by a district employee,
contractor, agent, volunteer or student, in good faith, the student will not be disciplined by the district or
any district employee, contractor, agent or volunteer. Intentionally making a false report of abuse of a
child is a Class A violation.
The district shall provide information and training each school year to district employees on the prevention
and identification of abuse, the obligations of district employees under ORS 339.388 and ORS 419B.005 419B.050 and as directed by Board policy to report suspected abuse of a child, and appropriate electronic
communications with students. The district shall make available each school year the training described
6

{ORS 339.372 requires the district to post the names and contact information of the persons, i.e., a
licensed administrator and an alternate licensed administrator, who are designated to receive reports of
sexual abuse for a school building in the respective school building. A “licensed administrator” is a person
employed as an administrator by the district and holds an administrative license issued by TSPC or may be
a person employed by the district that does not hold an administrative license issued by TSPC if the district
does not require the administrator to be licensed by TSPC.}
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above to contractors, agents, volunteers, and parents and legal guardians of students attending districtoperated schools, and will be made available separately from the training provided to district employees.
The district shall provide each school year information on the prevention and identification of abuse, the
obligations of district employees under Board policy to report abuse, and appropriate electronic
communications with students to contractors, agents and volunteers. The district shall make available each
school year training that is designed to prevent abuse to students attending district-operated schools.
The district shall provide to a district employee at the time of hire, or to a contractor, agent, or volunteer at
the time of beginning service for the district, the following:
1.

A description of conduct that may constitute abuse;

2.

A description of the investigatory process and possible consequences if a report of suspected abuse
is substantiated; and

3.

A description of the prohibitions imposed on district employees, contractors, and agents when they
attempt to obtain a new job, as provided under ORS 339.378. [A district employee, contractor or
agent will not assist another district employee, contractor or agent in obtaining a new job if the
individual knows, or has reasonable or probable cause to believe the district employee, contractor or
agent engaged in abuse, unless criteria found in ORS 339.378(2)(c) are applicable.]

Nothing in this policy prevents the district from disclosing information required by law or providing the
routine transmission of administrative and personnel files pursuant to law.
The district shall make available to students, district employees, contractors, agents, and volunteers a
policy of appropriate electronic communications with students.
Any electronic communications with students by a contractor, agent or volunteer for the district will be
appropriate and only when directed by district administration. When communicating with students
electronically regarding school-related matters, contractors, agents or volunteers shall use district e-mail,
using mailing lists and/or other internet messaging approved by the district to a group of students rather
than individual students or as directed by district administration. Texting or electronically communicating
with a student through contact information gained as a contractor, agent or volunteer for the district is
strongly discouraged.
The superintendent shall develop administrative regulations as are necessary to implement this policy and
to comply with state law.
END OF POLICY
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Legal Reference(s):
ORS 339.370 - 339.400
ORS 418.257 - 418.259

ORS 419B.005 - 419B.050

OAR 581-022-2205

Greene v. Camreta, 588 F.3d 1011 (9th Cir. 2009), vacated in part by, remanded by Camreta v. Greene, 131 S. Ct. 2020 (U.S.
2011); vacated in part, remanded by Greene v. Camreta 661 F.3d 1201 (9th Cir. 2011).
Senate Bill 51 (2021).
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Code:
Adopted:

JHFE/GBNAB-AR(1)

Reporting of Suspected Abuse of a Child
Reporting
Any district employee having reasonable cause to believe that any child with whom the employee comes
in contact has suffered abuse 1 shall orally report or cause an oral report immediately by telephone or
otherwise to the local office of the Oregon Department of Human Services (DHS) or its designee or to a
law enforcement agency within the county where the person making the report is at the time of their
contact. Any district employee who has reasonable cause to believe that any person 2 with whom the
employee is in contact has abused a child shall immediately report or cause a report to be made in the same
manner to DHS or its designee or to the law enforcement agency within the county where the person
making the report is located at the time of the contact pursuant to ORS 419B.010.
Any district employee who has reasonable cause to believe that another district employee, contractor,
agent, volunteer or student has engaged in abuse, or that a student has been subjected to abuse by another
district employee, contractor, agent, volunteer or student shall immediately report such to the DHS or its
designee or the local law enforcement agency pursuant to ORS 419B.015, and to the designated licensed
administrator or alternate licensed administrator for their school building.
If known, the report shall contain the names and addresses of the child and the parents of the child or other
persons responsible for the child’s care, the child’s age, the nature and extent of the suspected abuse,
including any evidence of previous abuse, the explanation given for the suspected abuse, any other
information that the person making the report believes might be helpful in establishing the possible cause
of the suspected abuse and the identity of a possible perpetrator.
If the superintendent is the alleged abuser the report shall be submitted to the Assistant Superintendent
who shall refer the report to the Board chair.
A written record of the abuse report shall be made by the employee reporting the suspected abuse of a
student and will include: name and position of the person making the report; name of the student; name
and position of any witness; description of the nature and extent of the abuse, including any information
which could be helpful in establishing cause of abuse and identity of the abuser; description of how the
report was made (i.e., phone or other method); name of the agency and individual who took the report;
date and time that the report was made; and name of district administrator who received a copy of the
written report.
The written record of the abuse report shall not be placed in the student’s educational record. A copy of the
written report shall be retained by the employee making the report and a copy shall be provided to the
designee that received the report.

1

Includes the neglect of a child; abuse is defined in ORS 419B.005.

2

“Person” could include adult, student or other child.
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When the designee receives a report of suspected abuse of a child by a district employee, and there is
reasonable cause to support the report, the district shall place the district employee on paid administrative
leave 3 and take necessary actions to ensure the student’s safety. The employee shall remain on leave until
DHS or law enforcement determines that the report is substantiated and the district takes the appropriate
employment action, or cannot be substantiated or is not a report of abuse and the district determines that
either 1) an employment policy was violated and the district will take appropriate employment action
against the employee, or 2) an employment policy has not be violated and no action is required by the
district against the employee.
When the designee receives a report of suspected abuse by a contractor{ 4}, agent or volunteer, the district
shall prohibit the contractor, agent or volunteer from providing services to the district. If the district
determines there is reasonable cause to support the report of suspected abuse, the district shall prohibit the
contractor agent or volunteer from providing services. The district may reinstate the contractor, agent or
volunteer, and such reinstatement may not occur until such time as a report of suspected abuse has been
investigated 5 and a determination has been made by law enforcement or DHS that the report is
unsubstantiated.
The written record of each reported incident of abuse of a child, action taken by the district and any
findings as a result of the report shall be maintained by the district.
If, following the investigation, the district decides to take an employment action, the district will inform
the district employee of the employment action to be taken and provide information about the appropriate
appeal process. The employee may appeal the employment action taken through the appeal process
provided by the applicable collective bargaining agreement.
If the district is notified that the employee decided not to appeal the employment action or if the
determination of an appeal sustained the employment action, a record of the findings of the substantiated
report and the employment action taken by the district will be placed in the records on the school
employee maintained by the district. Such records created are confidential and not public records as
defined in Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 192.311, however the district may use the record as a basis for
providing information required to be disclosed about a district employee under ORS 339.378(1). The
district will notify the employee that information about substantiated reports may be disclosed to a
potential employer.
Definitions
1.

Oregon law recognizes these and other types of abuse:
a.
b.
c.

3

Physical;
Neglect;
Mental injury;

The district employee cannot be required to use any accrued leave during the imposed paid administrative leave.

{The district is encouraged to duplicate this language in the contract. If the contract is with a company and the person assigned
to do the work is the alleged perpetrator, the district shall notify the company and request another company employee be
assigned to complete the work.}

4

5
The district will investigate all reports of suspected abuse, unless otherwise requested by DHS or its designee or law enforcement
pursuant to law.
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d.
e.

Threat of harm;
Sexual abuse and sexual exploitation.

2.

“Child” means an unmarried person who is under 18 years of age or is under 21 years of age and
residing in or receiving care or services at a child-caring agency.

3.

A “substantiated report” means a report of abuse that a law enforcement agency or DHS determines
is founded.

Confidentiality of Records
The name, address and other identifying information about the employee who made the report are
confidential and are not accessible for public inspection.
Upon request from law enforcement or DHS the district shall immediately provide requested documents or
materials to the extent allowed by state and federal law.
Failure to Comply
Any district employee who fails to report a suspected abuse of a child as provided by this policy and the
prescribed Oregon law commits a violation punishable by law. A district employee who fails to comply
with the confidentiality of records requirements commits a violation punishable by the prescribed law. If
an employee fails to report suspected abuse of a child or fails to maintain confidentiality of records as
required by this policy, the employee will be disciplined up to and including dismissal.
Cooperation with Investigator
The district staff shall make every effort in suspected abuse of a child cases to cooperate with investigating
officials as follows:
1.

Any investigation of abuse of a child will be directed by the DHS or law enforcement officials as
required by law. DHS or law enforcement officials wishing to interview a student shall present
themselves at the school office and contact the school administrator, unless the school administrator
is the subject of the investigation. [When an administrator is notified that the DHS or law
enforcement would like to interview a student at school, the administrator must request that the
investigating official fill out the appropriate form (See JHFE/GBNAB-AR(2) – Abuse of a Child
Investigations Conducted on District Premises). The administrator or designee should not deny the
interview based on the investigator’s refusal to sign the form.] If the student is to be interviewed at
the school, the administrator or designee shall make a private space available. The administrator or
designee of the school may, at the discretion of the investigator, be present to facilitate the interview.
If the investigating official does not have adequate identification the administrator shall refuse
access to the student.
Law enforcement officials wishing to remove a student from the premises shall present themselves at
the office and contact the administrator or designee. The law enforcement official shall sign the
student out in accordance with district procedures;

2.

When the subject matter of the interview or investigation is identified to be related to suspected
abuse of a child, district employees shall not notify parents or anyone else other than DHS or law
enforcement agency and any school employee necessary to enable the investigation;
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3.

The administrator or designee shall advise the investigator of any conditions of disability prior to
any interview with the affected child;

4.

District employees are not authorized to reveal anything that transpires during an investigation in
which the employee participates, nor shall the information become part of the student’s education
records, except that the employee may testify at any subsequent trial resulting from the investigation
and may be interviewed by the respective litigants prior to any such trial.

Nothing prevents the district from conducting its own investigation, unless another agency requests to lead
the investigation or requests the district to suspend the investigation, or taking an employment action based
on information available to the district before an investigation conducted by another agency is completed.
The district will cooperate with agencies assigned to conduct such investigations.
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Code:
Revised/Reviewed:

JHFE/GBNAB-AR(2)

Abuse of a Child Investigations Conducted on District Premises
The Department of Human Services (DHS) or a law enforcement agency has the authority to conduct an
investigation of a report of child abuse on school premises according to Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 419B.045.
The school administrator must be notified that the investigation is to take place, unless the administrator is a subject
of the investigation. The investigator is not required to reveal information about the investigation to the school as a
condition of conducting the investigation.
After the investigator provides adequate identification, school staff shall allow access to the child and provide a
private space for conducting the interview. The investigator shall be advised by a school administrator or a school
staff member of a child’s relevant disabling conditions, if any, prior to any interview with the child. The school
administrator or designee may, at the investigator’s discretion, be present to facilitate the investigation.
School staff may only notify DHS, the law enforcement agency or school employees that are necessary to enable the
investigation. School staff may not notify any other persons, including the child’s parent(s) or guardian(s).

Investigator Name (Printed)

Name of Agency

Name of Worker’s/Investigator’s Supervisor

Supervisor Contact Information

Investigator Position and Badge or ID Number

Student Name
School

Investigator Signature

Date

 Investigator refused to sign. District staff should not deny entry based on refusal to sign.

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------FOR COMPLETION BY DISTRICT STAFF
□
□
□

Student not available for interview
Student refused to be interviewed
Administrator participated in interview

Name of Administrator Notified
Name of Office Staff Involved
Name of Participating Administrator

This form should be placed in a separate secure file and not in the student’s file.
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Code:
Adopted:

JHFF/GBNAA

Suspected Sexual Conduct with Students and Reporting Requirements *
Sexual conduct by district employees, contractors 1, agents 2, and volunteers 3 is prohibited and will not be
tolerated. All district employees, contractors, agents, and volunteers are subject to this policy. Students are
also subject to this policy if they are acting as an employee, contractor, agent or volunteer.
4

“Sexual conduct,” means verbal or physical conduct or verbal, written or electronic communications by a
school employee, a contractor, an agent or a volunteer that involve a student and that are sexual advances
or requests for sexual favors directed toward the student, or of a sexual nature that are directed toward the
student or that have the effect of unreasonably interfering with a student’s educational performance, or of
creating an intimidating or hostile educational environment. “Sexual conduct” does not include touching or
other physical contact that is necessitated by the nature of the school employee’s job duties or by the
services required to be provided by the contractor, agent or volunteer, and for which there is no sexual
intent; verbal, written or electronic communications that are provided as part of an education program that
meets state educational standards or a policy approved by the Board; or conduct or communications
described in the definition of sexual conduct herein if the school employee, contractor, agent or volunteer
is also a student and the conduct or communications arise out of a consensual relationship between
students, do not create an intimidating or hostile educational environment and are not prohibited by law,
any policies of the district or any applicable employment agreements.
“Student” means any person who is in any grade from prekindergarten through grade 12 or 21 years of age
or younger and receiving educational or related services from the district that is not a post-secondary
institution of education, or who was previously known as a student by the person engaging in sexual
conduct and who left school or graduated from high school within 90 days prior to the sexual conduct.
The district will post in each school building the names and contact information of the employees
designated for the respective school buildings to receive reports of suspected sexual conduct and the
procedures the designee will follow upon receipt of the report.
Any district employee{ 5}[, contractor, agent or volunteer] who has reasonable cause to believe that a
student has been subjected to sexual conduct by another district employee, contractor, agent or volunteer,
1
“Contractor” means a person providing services to the district under a contract in a manner that requires the person to have
direct, unsupervised contact with students.

“Agent” means a person acting as an agent for the district in a manner that requires the person to have direct, unsupervised
contact with students.

2

“Volunteer” means a person acting as a volunteer for the district in a manner that requires the person to have direct,
unsupervised contact with students.

3

This definition of “sexual conduct” affects all conduct that occurs before, on or after June 23, 2021, for purposes of reports
that are made, investigations that are initiated, or a collective bargaining agreement, an employment contract, an agreement for
resignation or termination, a severance agreement or any similar contract or agreement entered into, on or after June 23, 2021.
4

{The following language in brackets, i.e., [, contractor, agent or volunteer], is optional language for the district to consider
including. If the language is kept, the district must make these groups aware of the policy and its administrative regulation and

5
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or that another district employee, contractor, agent or volunteer has engaged in sexual conduct with a
student shall immediately report such suspected sexual conduct to the { 6}designated licensed administrator
or the alternate designated licensed administrator, in the event the designated administrator is the
suspected perpetrator, for their school building. If the conduct also constitutes child abuse, the employee
must make mandatory reports in accordance with Board policy JHFE/GBNAB – Suspected Abuse of a
Child Reporting Requirements.
If the superintendent is the alleged perpetrator the report shall be submitted to the Assistant Superintendent
who shall report the suspected sexual conduct to the Board chair.
If an employee fails to report suspected sexual conduct or fails to maintain confidentiality of records, the
employee will be disciplined up to and including dismissal.
When a designated licensed administrator receives a report of suspected sexual conduct by a district
employee, contractor, agent or volunteer, the administrator will follow procedures established by the
district and set forth in the district’s administrative regulation JHFF/GBNAA-AR - Suspected Sexual
Conduct Report Procedures and Form. All such reports will be reported to the Oregon Department of
Education (ODE) or Teacher Standards and Practices Commission (TSPC) in accordance with such
administrative regulation. The agency receiving a report will complete an investigation regardless of any
changes in the relationship or duties of the person who is the alleged perpetrator.
When there is reasonable cause to support the report, a district employee suspected of sexual conduct shall
be placed on paid administrative leave pending an investigation and the district will take necessary actions
to ensure the student’s safety.
When there is reasonable cause to support the report, a district contractor, agent or volunteer suspected of
sexual conduct shall be removed from providing services to the district and the district will take necessary
actions to ensure the student’s safety.
The district will notify, as allowed by state and federal law, the person who was subjected to the suspected
sexual conduct about any actions taken by the district as a result of the report.
A district employee, contractor or agent will not assist another district employee, contractor or agent in
obtaining a new job if the individual knows, or has reasonable cause to believe the district employee,
contractor or agent engaged in sexual conduct. Nothing in this policy prevents the district from disclosing
information required by law or providing the routine transmission of administrative and personnel files
pursuant to law.
The initiation of a report in good faith about suspected sexual conduct may not adversely affect any terms
or conditions of employment or the work environment of the person who initiated the report or who may
have been subject to sexual conduct. If a student initiates a report of suspected sexual conduct by a district
their responsibilities under both. This may also be included in contracts with agents and contractors and include reference to this
policy.}
{ ORS 339.372 requires the district to post the names and contact information of the persons, i.e., a licensed administrator and
an alternate licensed administrator, who are designated to receive reports of sexual conduct for a school building in the
respective school building. A “licensed administrator” is a person employed as an administrator by the district and holds an
administrative license issued by TSPC or may be a person employed by the district that does not hold an administrative license
issued by TSPC if the district does not require the administrator to be licensed by TSPC.}

6
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employee, contractor, agent or volunteer in good faith, the student will not be disciplined by the district or
any district employee, contractor, agent or volunteer.
The district will provide to employees at the time of hire, or to a contractor, agent or volunteer at the time
of beginning service for the district, the following:
1.

A description of conduct that may constitute sexual conduct;

2.

A description of the investigatory process and possible consequences if a report of suspected sexual
conduct is substantiated; and

3.

A description of the prohibitions imposed on district employees, contractors and agents when they
attempt to obtain a new job, pursuant to ORS 339.378(2).

All district employees are subject to Board policy GCAB - Personal Electronic Devices and Social Media Staff regarding appropriate electronic communications with students.
Any electronic communications with students by a contractor, agent or volunteer for the district will be
appropriate and only when directed by district administration. When communicating with students
electronically regarding school-related matters, contractors, agents or volunteers shall use district e-mail
using mailing lists and/or other internet messaging approved by the district to a group of students rather
than individual students or as directed by district administration. Texting or electronically communicating
with a student through contact information gained as a contractor, agent or volunteer for the district is
strongly discouraged.

143

The superintendent shall develop administrative regulations to implement this policy and to comply with
state law.
END OF POLICY
Legal Reference(s):
ORS 332.107

ORS 339.370 - 339.400

Every Student Succeeds Act, 20 U.S.C. § 7926 (2018).
House Bill 2136 (2021).
Senate Bill 51 (2021).
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ORS 419B.005 - 419B.045

LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA
January 11, 2022
ITEM: Discussion and Information
TOPIC:

Instrument for Superintendent Evaluation and Timeline

PREPARED BY:

Eddie Symington

WILL BE PRESENTED BY:
TYPE OF ITEM:

Board

Consent

Information

Discussion

Decision

DESCRIPTION OF AGENDA ITEM:

The School Board will devise a process and timeline in which the Superintendent will be
evaluated.

RECOMMENDATION:

None; for information at this time

ADDITIONAL MATERIALS:

Attached: Yes

No
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Available: Yes

No

LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA
January 11, 2022
ITEM: Discussion & Information
TOPIC:

Other

PREPARED BY:

Eddie Symington

WILL BE PRESENTED BY:
TYPE OF ITEM:

Chair Cawley

Consent

Information

Discussion

Decision

DESCRIPTION OF AGENDA ITEM:

i. January 25, 2022 Work Session via Zoom
ii. The Board will receive a Google Form collecting more specific information
on NSBA
iii. February 8, 2022 Regular Business Meeting at Toledo Jr/Sr at this time

RECOMMENDATION:

None, for information and discussion only
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